
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
                           

MEETING AGENDA 

PLAN COMMISSION 
Wednesday, April 11, 2018 

7:30 P.M. 
MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 

(Revised) 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. MINUTES - Minutes of March 14, 2018 
 

3. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
a) Case A-44-2017 – 540 W. Ogden Ave. - Kensington School - Map Amendment and 

concurrent tentative Plat of Subdivision to subdivide and rezone approximately 1.74 
acres to an O-2 Limited Office District and subdivide approximately 2.26 acres into 8 R-4 
Single Family District lots. 

 
4. SIGN PERMIT REVIEW 

a) Case A-17-2018 – 22 W. First Street – John Realty – 2 Wall Signs 
       
5. PUBLIC HEARING - All those wishing to provide public testimony must be sworn in 

and after the applicant makes their presentation will be recognized by the Chair to 
speak. 

a) Case A-09-2018 – 45 S. Washington suite 302 (3rd floor), - Inner Jasmine Yoga and 
Fitness – Special Use Permit for a Yoga Studio in the B-2 General Business District 

b)  Case A-12-2018 – 540 W. Ogden Ave. - Kensington School – Final Plat and concurrent 
Special Use Permit for a Child Daycare School and Exterior Appearance and Site Plan 
Review for a 1-story, 23-foot tall Child Daycare School in relation to Case A-44-2017 

 
6.  EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 

a)  Case A-04-2018 –55th St./County Line – Hinsdale Meadows - Major Adjustment to a 
Planned Development for Elevation and Material Changes to the Homes 

b)  Case A-10-2018 – 830 N. Madison Street – Salt Creek Club - Third Major Adjustment to 
Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review within 250 feet of a Single-Family Residential 
District 

c) Case A-13-2018 – 339 W. 57th St. – T-Mobile - Exterior Appearance Review within 250 
feet of a Single-Family Residential District for Additional Cell Phone Equipment on 
Existing Infrastructure 

d)  Case A-15-2018 – 4 N. Washington St. - Chase Bank – Exterior Appearance/Site Plan 
Review for New Mechanical Equipment (Condenser and Air Handler) within 250 feet of a 
Multiple Family Residential District 

                        
     7.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in 
order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the 
accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 
630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons.  Web Site:  www.villageofhinsdale.org  

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


 

MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

PLAN COMMISSION 

March 14, 2018 

MEMORIAL HALL 

7:30 P.M. 

 
Chairman Cashman called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m., Wednesday, March 14, 2018, in Memorial Hall, 
the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.   
 
PRESENT: Steve Cashman, Gerald Jablonski, Anna Fiascone, Jim Krillenberger, Debra Braselton, 

Mark Willobee and Julie Crnovich   
 
ABSENT: Scott Peterson and Troy Unell 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Chan Yu Village Planner, Robb McGinnis Community Development Director, 

Michael Marrs Village Attorney, and Brian King Police Chief  
Applicant for cases: A-45-2017, A-44-2017 and  A-11-2018 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Approval of Minutes - February 14, 2018 
The PC, with no questions, unanimously approved the February 14, 2018, minutes as submitted, 6-0 (3 
absent). 
 
 
Findings and Recommendations - Case A-05-2018 – 36 E. Hinsdale Avenue – Exterior Appearance 
Review for front and rear building façade improvements in the B-2 Central Business District 
 
The PC, with no questions, unanimously approved the Findings and Recommendations, 6-0 (3 absent).   
 
 
Findings and Recommendations -  Case A-45-2017 – Non-compliant, Off-Site Signage on median at 
Ogden Avenue and Salt Creek Lane - MedProperties (8 Salt Creek Campus LLC) – New Ground Sign 
(will also require variation review/approval by the ZBA)  
 
The PC, with no questions, unanimously approved the Findings and Recommendations, 6-0 (2 absent, 1 
abstained).   
 
 
Sign Permit Review - Case A-11-2018 – 777 N. York Road – Impact Physical Fitness – 1 New Awning 
sign (at front entrance facing plaza courtyard) and Wall Sign (facing York Rd.) OR 1 New Awning 
Sign (at front entrance facing plaza courtyard) and 1 New Awning Sign (facing York Rd.) 
 
The applicant presented the request to withdraw the proposed illuminated wall sign (option 1) and instead, 
proposed a sign modification request to keep 2 awning signs facing York Road, and 1 awning sign facing the 
front entrance (facing the plaza courtyard), per a modification request for 3 signs. 
 
The PC unanimously approved the sign application as requested, 7-0 (2 absent). 
 
 

 Approved 
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Public Hearing -  *Continued from Feb. 14, 2018 PC Meeting* Case A-44-2017 – 540 W. Ogden Ave, - 
Kensington School - Map Amendment and concurrent Plat of Subdivision to subdivide and rezone 
approximately 1.74 acres to an O-2 Limited Office District and subdivide approximately 2.26 acres 
into 8 R-4 Single Family District lots. 
 
(Please see the attached transcript for Case A-44-2017 included as part of this record, Attachment 1) 
 
The applicant (Mr. Marlas) presented to the PC, the site plan changes since the last public hearing, including 
achieving 39 parking spaces (code compliant), moving the refuse area away from the residential district (on 
the east end of the subject property to the west end), and adding a loading zone.  
 
The Village Attorney, Michael Marrs, explained that through the Special Use permit application, the PC and 
Board may consider not requiring a loading zone if they believe it would be a detriment to the use of the 
property or surrounding area.    
 
A Commissioner asked what type of deliveries does Kensington School receive. The applicant responded 
they receive deliveries by panel truck/van for their catered lunch. 
 
A Commissioner asked the applicant if they used the maximum capacity to calculate parking. The applicant 
responded he believes the net floor area exceeded the capacity figure.  
 
The applicant’s traffic consultant, Michael Werthmann, KLOA, gave a comprehensive summary of the 
traffic report.  
 
Six (6) neighborhood residents spoke against the application, citing for example: increased traffic; that 
changes in the assumptions used in the traffic report could drastically alter the conclusions of the report; and 
a couple of neighbors stated when they purchased their home, the Village told them the subject property is 
and will stay R-4 Single Family Residential (so to that end, the subject property should remain R-4). 
 
During the PC discussion, the Commissioners in favor of the application referenced: there is a need for child 
daycare schools in Hinsdale; increased traffic would be minimal; the subject property has been vacant for 
many years; the proposed school building looks good; and it is a good compromise for being half residential 
and half “buffer” between the residential district and Ogden Avenue. 
 
The Commissioners opposed of the application referenced: support for the current zoning (R-4) to remain R-
4 and increased traffic due to the request. 
 
The PC approved to recommend the application, 4-3 (2 absent), the Map Amendment and concurrent Plat 
of Subdivision to subdivide and rezone approximately 1.74 acres to an O-2 Limited Office District and 
subdivide approximately 2.26 acres into 8 R-4 Single Family District lots. 
 
 
Schedule of Public Hearing - Case A-09-2018 - 45 S. Washington suite 302 (3rd floor), - Inner Jasmine 
Yoga and Fitness – Special Use Permit for a Yoga Studio in the B-2 General Business District 
 
The PC unanimously approved to schedule a public hearing for Case A-09-2018 for the April 11, 2018, PC 
meeting, 7-0 (2 absent). 
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Schedule of Public Hearing -  Case A-12-2018 – 540 W. Ogden Ave, - Kensington School - Final Plat 
and concurrent Special Use Permit for a Child Daycare School and Exterior Appearance and Site Plan 
Review for a 1-story, 23-foot tall Child Daycare School in relation to Case A-44-2017. 
 
The PC unanimously approved to schedule a public hearing for Case A-12-2018 for the April 11, 2018, PC 
meeting, 7-0 (2 absent). 
 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:17 p.m. after a unanimous vote.    
 
Respectfully Submitted by Chan Yu, Village Planner  
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

                  ) SS:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

         BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

                  PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:                        )

                                         )

Case A-44-2017 - 540 W. Ogden Avenue -   )    
Kensington School - Map Amendment        )   
and concurrent tentative Plat of         )

Subdivision to subdivide and rezone      )   
approximately 1.74 acres to an 0-2       )   
Limited Office District and subdivide    )   
approximately 2.26 acres into 8 R-4      )   
Single Family District lots.             )

         CONTINUED REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and 

testimony taken at the public hearing of the 

above-entitled matter before the Hinsdale Plan 

Commission at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 

Illinois, on the 14th day of March, 2018, at the 

hour of 7:45 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman; 

         MS. DEB BRASELTON, Member;

MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member;

         MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member; 

MR. GERALD JABLONSKI, Member; 

MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member;       

MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.  

Attachment 1 - PC Min. 3.14.18 - Case A-44-17
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ALSO PRESENT:  1

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner;2

MR. ROBERT MC GINNIS, Director of   3

              Community Development/Building 

              Commissioner;4

         MR. BRIAN M. KING, Chief of Police;5

MR. CHARLES MARLAS, Owner, Kensington 6

              School; 

7

MR. MARK WERTHMANN, KLOA. 

________________________________________8

         CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Our next item is a 9

Public Hearing.  This is Case No. A-44-2017, 540 10

West Ogden Avenue.  This is for Kensington 11

School.  It's a map amendment and concurrent 12

tentative plat of subdivision to subdivide and 13

rezone approximately 1.74 acres to an O-2 limited 14

office district and subdivide approximately 2.26 15

acres into 8 R-4 single-family district lots.  16

We first heard this in February at 17

our last meeting and this was continued to this 18

evening.  19

Charles, can you give us an update 20

on what's submitted in this revised packet?  21

22
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     (WHEREUPON, the oath was   1

                   administered en masse to  2

                   audience members.)3

MR. MARLAS:  Sure.  Good evening, 4

everyone.  My name is Charles Marlas.  As you 5

all know, I was here last month going over our 6

proposed Kensington School subdivision on 540 7

West Ogden Avenue.  8

Since last time we have made a 9

number of adjustments to our site plan to 07:46:02PM 10

reflect some of the issues that this board 11

brought to our attention that they want some 12

remedy on.  13

We also had a community meeting at 14

the home of Dirk Landis, and I thank Dirk for 15

having that, and I can offer a summary of that 16

as well.  17

I'll start with the site plan 18

changes that we made.  Prior to this evening, 19

our prior plan -- so this is showing a site plan 07:46:32PM 20

of Kensington School with Ogden Avenue on the 21

east and we have made a few changes here on the 22
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site plan as requested.  1

We were able to get 39 parking 2

spaces in the parking lot which is fully code 3

compliant now.  We moved the refuse container 4

away from the adjacent neighborhood to the east 5

and there was an issue regarding loading and 6

this site, this O-2 site needs to have a loading 7

zone.  8

There was some discussion about 9

future use for the loading zone, you know if 07:47:28PM 10

this building were to change hands, what would 11

happen; it sits in the O-2 district and if it 12

became something else at a future time, would 13

there then be a need for a loading zone.  14

We decided and discussed with staff 15

if there's a possibility to land bank a loading 16

zone.  You can see that right here right behind 17

this refuse container.  And the land bank, for 18

those who aren't really familiar, is simply an 19

area on a site that we can pledge for future use 07:47:58PM 20

to house or contain that feature that is needed 21

as required by the code.  22
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So this is currently yard and 1

fence.  If Kensington School were to one day go 2

away and this were to become something else that 3

would necessitate a loading zone, there would be 4

space here for it.  And obviously in the 5

application of any future use would need to come 6

before this board and at that time you would be 7

able to use your discretion if that land bank 8

loading zone is in fact needed at the time or not.  9

There were also some other mentions 07:48:36PM 10

of front setbacks and parking width or drive 11

width onto Ogden Avenue.  Those are still in 12

place as per a prior agreement that the village 13

of Hinsdale has with the current owner MIH 14

Development.  So that portion of the project 15

stayed in place.  16

Any questions?  17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  There's one thing I 18

just want to state to the commission.  So the 19

packet that was posted online, the geometric 07:49:04PM 20

plan is incorrect.  It said there were 39 21

parking spaces but there are actually only 38 22

Attachment 1 - PC Min. 3.14.18 - Case A-44-17
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and it did not have any setback lines so what 1

Chan printed out and what you have in front of 2

you is this revised and it's different than what 3

was posted online.  4

Did you update what was online or 5

is it still the original?  6

MR. YU:  Still the original.7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  It was one area 8

there there's a difference in the plans and it 9

didn't add up to the required number.  So we are 07:49:38PM 10

now -- it's shown and what was revised and 11

submitted today has the proper number.  12

One thing I wanted to ask about the 13

land banking on the loading because Chan, your 14

cover letter it basically said that these rights 15

were reviewed by the village attorney and for 16

land bank arrangement says, No such land banking 17

flexibility would require a loading zone to be 18

given.  And then it goes on to say, however, the 19

PC and village board may consider imposing a 07:50:12PM 20

condition for the special use which would be in 21

the future.  So that will just have to be 22
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addressed at a different time.  1

Right now it's basically shown but 2

unless something is granted, it would have to be 3

required.  Doesn't seem like it impacts your 4

plan at all.  5

MR. MARLAS:  It doesn't affect the 6

plan.  The only other contingency that exists 7

with this is that that loading zone as required 8

needs to be not visible from a right-of-way.  9

MS. BRASELTON:  It needs to not face 07:50:40PM 10

the right-of-way.  So that was my question.  11

MR. MARLAS:  Anywhere you look this 12

loading zone would be viewable by a right-of-way 13

being on a corner.  14

MS. BRASELTON:  Not from the south. 15

MR. MARLAS:  The south where?  16

MS. BRASELTON:  Back of the building.17

MS. CRNOVICH:  That's what I was 18

thinking.19

MS. BRASELTON:  Or the east side of the 07:51:12PM 20

building.  It just can't face a right-of-way is 21

my understanding, open onto a right-of-way.  22
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I didn't know whether land banking 1

was just a general setting aside this much land 2

or if the land banked location needs to be 3

specified in the plan. 4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  You want to chime in 5

on that?6

MR. MARRS:  Sure.  So as Chan alluded 7

to in the memo, there's not really flexibility 8

of redoing this land banking idea but you could, 9

if the plan commission or the board feels that 07:51:42PM 10

having a loading zone at all for this particular 11

use would be a detriment to the use of the 12

property as well as the surrounding area and the 13

neighbors, you could make it a condition of a 14

grant of the special use that a loading zone not 15

be provided.  16

In the alternative, if it does need 17

to be located, it would be an issue to have it 18

open to the street like you mentioned.  As for 19

future uses, if somebody came in in the future 07:52:18PM 20

with a permitted use, the special use isn't in 21

play anymore, that condition would no longer 22
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apply.  So if the code requires a loading zone 1

at that time, you would have to have a loading 2

zone, which they would have to tackle at that 3

time.  Same for a different special use than 4

this one, it would come before you guys and you 5

guys would deal with it then. 6

MS. CRNOVICH:  What kind of deliveries 7

does the school get?  8

MR. MARLAS:  We get a food delivery 9

once a day.  For lunch we cater our lunch 07:52:46PM 10

through an organic catering service and they 11

come in a paneled van, they stay for about 12

15 minutes and then leave.  13

MS. CRNOVICH:  So most of your 14

deliveries are panel trucks? 15

MR. MARLAS:  Our only delivery is panel 16

truck.  The other deliveries we all get at our 17

corporate headquarters and then we will 18

distribute out with various teachers and what 19

not.  So I can't think of really if there's ever 07:53:06PM 20

occasional furniture delivery, things like that, 21

which there really aren't.  Everything would be 22
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typically in a panel truck, panel van. 1

MS. CRNOVICH:  Thank you.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Other questions for 3

the applicant? 4

MS. FIASCONE:  Are you at max capacity 5

for your -- are you planning max capacity for 6

your students when you determine the parking 7

requirement based on employees and students? 8

MR. MARLAS:  Yes.  Partial parking is 9

based on the employees and/or net square footage 07:53:46PM 10

of the building area, whichever is greater.  11

MS. FIASCONE:  So there's no chance 12

that the students -- it will get higher?   13

MR. MARLAS:  No.  No.  There really 14

isn't.  And we are going off of -- so the code 15

isn't reflective of number of students, it's 16

reflective of net floor area or number of 17

teachers, so whichever is greater.  And there is 18

a student component I think 1 per 15.  So I 19

think that the net floor area would exceed 07:54:14PM 20

anything anyway.  So 39 spaces is what's 21

required by net floor area.  22
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MR. WILLOBEE:  With respect to the 1

parking, do you have an idea of how the parking 2

lot would function, meaning like everything to 3

the east seems like kind of not very fluid.  I 4

take my kids to day-care, I know how fluid the 5

parking lot is, quick ins, quick outs.  You have 6

spots 28 and 29 that really don't have a spot to 7

back out and turn around in so those are kind of 8

challenging parking spots in and of itself.  9

Do you envision teachers parking 07:54:56PM 10

more on that east side and then parents being 11

able to park -- 12

MR. MARLAS:  I haven't really thought 13

about it to be honest.  At this point, I was 14

more focused on simply having the proper number 15

of spaces.  It might make more sense to have 16

teachers park on that east side of the property, 17

which we would be amenable to, if that's what 18

this commission would request.19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Well, in that previous 07:55:18PM 20

plan you had like a three-foot extension there 21

to help the last spots turn out.  This is a 22
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tentative plat of subdivision so we are going to 1

see a final on some of these things.  But I do 2

think, I prefer, even though you were short a 3

space, I preferred the way that was handled on 4

the far east end because that allowed those last 5

two spaces more flexibility.  I'd like to 6

investigate that for the final. 7

MR. MARLAS:  So to have that little 8

projection in the twenty-four foot drive out let 9

someone kind of make that three point turn out 07:55:52PM 10

of those last spaces. 11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Because if it's 12

full, it will be tough. 13

MR. MARLAS:  We have the same type of 14

parking situation at our Elmhurst location where 15

it kind of dead ends flat like this and those 16

last two spaces.   17

MR. WILLOBEE:  But it looked like you 18

have a drive-through, kind of a drop-off lane. 19

MR. MARLAS:  We do have a drive-through 07:56:12PM 20

drop-off lane and that was just -- you know, 21

every site is different and we have to play with 22
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each site and make it work as best we could.  1

We couldn't get parking in front of 2

that building like we have here.  We prefer to 3

have parking in front of the building, it's a 4

shorter walk for parents to get in when it's 5

snowing or raining or whatnot. 6

MR. WILLOBEE:  Because you would 7

prohibit parking in front of the building and 8

dropping off.  9

MR. MARLAS:  Yes, without a doubt.  07:56:34PM 10

These are parking spaces.  At our Elmhurst 11

location we do have a designated drive lane that 12

Elmhurst had given us some standing to kind of 13

park and leave the flashers on and run inside.  14

Here we have parking spaces right in front so 15

parents won't have to do that.  16

Just so I get an understanding, 17

would you prefer to see less parking spaces?  18

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  No, you need to 19

comply with parking.  07:57:00PM 20

MR. MARLAS:  But you want us to see if 21

we can squeeze that in?  22
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CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.  And I think 1

you have some flexibility on how things are laid 2

out.  I think it's a 3 foot raise, minimum 5 3

feet so you can shift things.  4

MS. CRNOVICH:  I think there's a 5

section of the code too that will tell you what 6

is required for three point turns.  I know 7

there's something in there that will tell you 8

what the requirements are for each parking space.   9

MR. MARLAS:  Okay.  Very good.07:57:28PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jerry? 11

MR. JABLONSKI:  I still have trouble 12

with the fact that we are talking about taking a 13

residential zoned area and turning it into office 14

when we have perhaps the most dense parking 15

problem situation between only two businesses 16

and we are talking about adding a third business 17

to what is predominantly a residential area and 18

currently zoned a residential, so that's my issue.19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Deb?  07:58:14PM 20

MS. BRASELTON:  You guys are covering 21

everything.22
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CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jim? 1

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Looks a lot better.  2

I'm very interested in what the neighbors had to 3

say and what the results were of your 4

neighborhood meeting, but so far so good.   5

MR. MARLAS:  I can go into that a 6

little bit if you like.  I put a summary 7

sheet -- I put a summary together and it's in 8

the packet.  I don't know if you all read that.  9

I don't know if you want me to reiterate that or 07:58:38PM 10

elaborate on it or if you have any questions 11

relative to that summary.12

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I really would like 13

to hear a summary from your traffic engineer 14

about that report.  15

MR. MARLAS:  Sure.  16

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  There's a lot of 17

data there.  18

MR. MARLAS:  Sure.  Michael Werthman is 19

here from KLOA.07:58:54PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I know, Michael, you 21

were at the neighbor meeting also.  22
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MR. WERTHMAN:  Correct.  Do you have 1

specific questions or do you want me to give you 2

a little summary? 3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  A summary, I think, 4

would be good.  And then I'll have some questions 5

as there's some things I have some questions 6

about that are in the report.7

MR. WERTHMAN:  Okay.  So as we all 8

know, we are talking the Kensington School and 9

eight single-family homes.  As we talked about 07:59:22PM 10

last time access, primary access to the school 11

will be via the three corner access on Ogden 12

Avenue that would permit right turn in, left 13

turn in and right turn out.  Left turn out 14

movements would be prohibited.  15

As we discussed, we have met with 16

IDOT.  They want us to restrict that left turn 17

out, so we have designed it per IDOT's criteria 18

where it will be signed and you will have the 19

half pork chop median that channelizes our 07:59:56PM 20

traffic out to the right.  21

In addition, the plan proposes two 22
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access drives or at one point the Ogden Avenue 1

access drive is at the existing location where 2

the drive is now.  The two drives on Monroe are 3

basically at the same locations as the two 4

drives that are there now.  The northernmost 5

will serve the school and the southern will 6

serve the eight single-family homes.  Both 7

drives will provide full access, one inbound 8

lane and one outbound lane.  9

One thing that we discussed a lot 08:00:36PM 10

at the neighborhood meeting, and I'd like to 11

bring up here, is that the existing site is 12

currently used, as we all know, for parking for 13

ManorCare and Hinsdale Orthopaedics.  ManorCare 14

has a lease to park up to 75 vehicles at that 15

site.  Hinsdale Orthopaedics has a sublease with 16

ManorCare to park some of their vehicles there.  17

ManorCare has indicated with the 18

redevelopment of this site they are going to 19

find some offsite parking.  I believe it's 08:01:06PM 20

Christ Church they are talking to park their 21

employees and they will bus them to and from the 22
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ManorCare facility.  1

As such, a good percentage of the 2

traffic that's already generated by the site, 3

these 75 vehicles, will be removed from the area 4

traffic and through the neighborhood.  So one 5

big point here is the traffic that's generated 6

by the school and by the eight single-family 7

homes, will not be all new traffic to the 8

neighborhood as some of it will be relocated.9

MS. BRASELTON:  How much?  You said a 08:01:42PM 10

good percentage of the traffic.11

MR. WERTHMAN:  Well, there's at least 12

75.  When I have been out there, I have seen as 13

many as 40, 45, 50 vehicles parked within the 14

subject site.15

MS. BRASELTON:  Are those employee 16

cars?  They must know how many employees there 17

would be.18

MR. WERTHMAN:  It's a combination of 19

ManorCare and Hinsdale Orthopaedics.  So a good 08:02:04PM 20

portion of them are going to leave and I think 21

it fluctuates day-to-day.  I don't have the 22
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exact answer but the three or four times I have 1

been out there I have seen upwards to 40 to 45 2

cars parked in the subject site.  So that's one 3

big thing I wanted to let everyone know.  4

Just quickly regarding the operation 5

of the school.  We are talking 150 students max 6

and 21 to 23 staff.  It's important to note 7

regarding the students with 150 students, it 8

doesn't necessarily mean that everyone's driving 9

a single student to the facility.  08:02:42PM 10

As Chuck has indicated, they 11

typically have 125 to 130 families, each family 12

may have more than one children.  Furthermore, 13

not every child goes to school every day so the 14

-- and then you have a number of absentees.  So 15

the number of children at the school fluctuates 16

on any given day.  So with the carpooling and 17

everything, you are not getting 150 cars a day 18

there.  19

Another factor that's significant 08:03:16PM 20

with Chuck's facilities is that there is no 21

start or end time to the school.  It's similar 22
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to a day-care where you can drop your kid off 1

any time you want, you can pick them up at any 2

time you want.  Generally, the drop off is 3

anywhere between 6:30 and 9 and the pickup is 4

between 3:30 and 6 so it helps distribute that 5

traffic over a two and a half hour period in the 6

morning and a two and a half hour period in the 7

afternoon.  8

As we have heard, all of the 9

parents must park and walk their children in.  08:03:50PM 10

As you can see from the site, there is no 11

curbside loading so you couldn't really do 12

anything but drop off your student -- or park 13

and walk the student in.  14

The volume of traffic that will be 15

generated by the facility, as we discussed last 16

time, was based on surveys that we conducted at 17

the Elmhurst facility.  We talked about this 18

last time.  It's very similar to the operation 19

that is proposed here from the number of 08:04:22PM 20

students to the number of staff and I believe 21

it's an identical building that is proposed 22
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here.  Same size, same number of children and 1

everything.  2

What we found from those studies is 3

that during the peak period of pickup and drop 4

off we saw about 54 vehicles coming in and 54 5

vehicles going out during the morning peak hour 6

and 53 in and 59 out during the evening peak.  7

So you get around 50 to 55 round trips in and 8

out during those peak hours.  It's about one a 9

minute, less than one vehicle every minute or 08:05:00PM 10

minute and a half.  11

Once again, you have to remember 12

that that will be offset somewhat by the vehicles 13

that are currently parking in the site and that 14

will be relocated to an offsite parking facility.  15

So the net increase in traffic, particularly to 16

the neighborhood, would be reduced, will not be 17

as high as if this was just an empty lot and we 18

were coming in with a new school.  19

The other important factor is the 08:05:28PM 20

school closes at 6:30 on weekdays.  It's not 21

open on weekends.  So it really only generates 22
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traffic during those two and a half hours in the 1

morning, two and a half hours in the evening.  2

There's some traffic during the midday but after 3

6:30, it's not generating any traffic and on the 4

weekends it is not generating any traffic.  It's 5

a low generator outside of those morning and 6

evening peak hours.  7

For directional distribution, we 8

have taken a look at the existing roadway system 9

and the routes to the facility we see as being 08:06:04PM 10

equally distributed along the east and the west 11

on Ogden and to the south into Hinsdale.  12

As we talked about last time, we 13

will not be able to make a left onto Ogden 14

Avenue at the access drive or at Monroe given 15

the left turn restrictions.  As such, anyone who 16

wants to leave the site and go to the west has 17

several options.  They can either travel south 18

on Monroe to Chicago and go west into Westmont 19

or further south to cut across on another east- 08:06:46PM 20

west road or they can go around the block, down 21

the road onto North to Madison and then make a 22

123

left onto Ogden Avenue.  1

Truth be told, and Chuck and I have 2

talked about this, he may not get as many 3

families that live to the west just given how 4

the site access is.  More people may come from 5

the east and more people may be located south of 6

the site.  7

So based on the directional 8

distribution and the volume of traffic, we 9

assign that to the roadway system.  We assume 08:07:18PM 10

the outbound traffic more of it would be 11

traveling south on Monroe than in the inbound.  12

And quickly, the operation of the 13

roadway system, you know the roadway system has 14

sufficient reserve capacity to accommodate the 15

additional traffic.  All of the intersections, 16

all of the movements are operating at acceptable 17

levels of service.  18

The only real issue from a capacity 19

standpoint, I think we talked about this last 08:07:48PM 20

time, is that left turn movement on northbound 21

Monroe to westbound Madison at the signalized 22
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intersection.  It does back up, particularly in 1

the morning.  We are adding maybe 10, 12 left 2

turn movements to that overall.  Our increase on 3

that intersection is about one and a half 4

percent to two percent in traffic.  Further, all 5

of the access drives are projected to operate 6

very well with limited delay in cue.  7

I understand there's been some 8

concerns regarding that inbound left turn 9

movement from Ogden to the site.  A couple of 08:08:30PM 10

things for you to consider is one, we are 11

projecting maybe eighteen to nineteen movements 12

in any one hour.  That's one every three minutes.  13

It's not a significant volume of traffic by any 14

means.  The one thing about the left turn in 15

it's only got to cross the eastbound flow of 16

traffic so there's many more gaps in the traffic 17

stream when you are only crossing one flow of 18

traffic.  That's why the left turn out is 19

prohibited because you have to wait for a gap in 08:09:00PM 20

both streams of traffic.  21

We did a gap study out there, 22
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there's more than sufficient gaps in the roadway 1

system.  This is evident in the fact that you 2

have two times to three times as many left turns 3

occurring from Ogden onto Monroe during the peak 4

hours.  In fact, looking at our counts, we did 5

counts this year and a year ago when we started 6

on this project.  In one 15-minute period there 7

were 20 left turns from Ogden onto Monroe which 8

is the total volume that we will have in an hour.9

         MS. BRASELTON:  At what time?  08:09:34PM 10

MR. WERTHMAN:  In that 15-minute period.11

MS. BRASELTON:  What time of day was 12

that?  13

MR. WERTHMAN:  I think that was in the 14

morning.  I can double check for you.  15

But in the study you can see when 16

we did the counts in January there was 36, 37 17

left turns both in the morning peak hour and in 18

the afternoon peak hour.  Between 83 and York 19

Road you have a number of intersections and 08:10:00PM 20

access drives where there's no left turns.  So 21

it's a common occurrence along this stretch of 22
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Ogden Avenue.  1

Lastly, regarding the left turns, 2

Chuck has a facility in Wheaton on Naperville 3

Road, very similar to Ogden and its 4

characteristics, a four lane road, no left 5

turns, no left turn lane, excuse me, 40 miles an 6

hour speed limit and actually carries a higher 7

daily volume than Ogden Avenue.  They have been 8

operating there for eight or nine years.  It's a 9

full access.  They do get left turns out there, 08:10:36PM 10

and he hasn't had any issues with it, so it's 11

been operating well.  12

And then the last thing I would 13

like to talk about is the neighborhood and our 14

impact on the neighborhood.  I know this is very 15

important to the residents and we talked about 16

this at the neighborhood meeting.  17

So first of all, let's talk about 18

the existing conditions.  We looked at the 19

traffic volumes on Madison Street, Monroe Street 08:11:06PM 20

and North Street.  Those are the three main 21

streets around the site.  We obtained volumes 22
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from IDOT.  The village police did some recent 1

counts at the intersection of North and Monroe 2

where they did daily traffic count and we have 3

also done traffic counts in the area.  4

Before I get into the counts, it's 5

important to note that all three of these roads 6

are very similar in their characteristics.  They 7

are two lane local roads, basically serving the 8

neighborhood and access to Hinsdale, downtown 9

Hinsdale.  08:11:46PM 10

What we found out is Madison Street, 11

as we can all expect, carries the highest volume 12

of traffic.  It carries about 5,000 vehicles a 13

day.  This is expected given that it's one of 14

the primary routes into downtown, it's got a 15

signalized intersection with Ogden Avenue.  Even 16

though it carries 5,000, it's interesting in the 17

fact that it does extend along a park, Burns 18

field there, as well as Monroe elementary school 19

and does have a 20-mile an hour school zone in 08:12:18PM 20

that area.  21

Monroe Street had the next highest 22
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volumes.  It carries about 3,000 vehicles a day.  1

So it's carrying about 40 to 45 percent less 2

traffic than what Madison carries right now.  3

Madison is at 5,000, Monroe is at about 3,000.  4

It carries a little higher volume of traffic as 5

we talked about last time because it's one of 6

only several north-south streets that provides 7

access between Ogden and Hinsdale and Westmont.  8

North Street carries the lowest 9

volume of traffic, about 1,000 vehicles, 1,000 08:12:54PM 10

to 1,400.  That's also expected and given that 11

it really only extends for a mile and doesn't 12

cross 83.  13

So what this really shows is the 14

range of traffic in the neighborhood from a high 15

to 5,000 to a low to 1,000 and it works.  It 16

operates well.  Everything operates at a good 17

level of service.  That's my second point.  18

All of these roadways are operating 19

well below the carrying capacity of a roadway.  08:13:22PM 20

We did counts at Monroe and North to see how 21

that intersection is working.  Operates at a 22
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level of service A, the best level of service.  1

Very limited delays or cuing.  2

What you do find out is as the 3

light turns green from 83, people come off, they 4

make the right and they come down Monroe and 5

usually there's three or four, five cars making 6

that maneuver.  They get to the stop sign and 7

you may have one or two cars waiting and then 8

they quickly get through the intersection.  So 9

all of these roadways have more than sufficient 08:13:58PM 10

capacity to accommodate the additional traffic.  11

The other point is the roadways 12

have been designed with various traffic control, 13

pedestrian facilities and traffic calming 14

measures that enhances the pedestrian circulation 15

in the neighborhood and helps to calm and slow 16

down the traffic in the neighborhood.  17

Some of these measures include that 18

there's always stop control at many of the 19

intersections in the neighborhood.  Right at 08:14:26PM 20

North and Madison and North and Monroe, as you 21

come down Monroe between Ogden and Chicago, 22

Attachment 1 - PC Min. 3.14.18 - Case A-44-17



9 of 38 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

130

there's five blocks and you got a stop at I 1

think three of the intersections.  So there's 2

stop signs every other block which you want in a 3

neighborhood.  That's how you design it so 4

people are stopping and the speeds can only get 5

up so high.  You typically got crosswalks at all 6

of the intersections or most of the 7

intersections.  8

Monroe and Madison both have school 9

zones with reduced 20-mile an hour speeds by 08:15:00PM 10

Monroe school.  And lastly, there's radar speed 11

signs, the flashing signs that tell you how fast 12

you are going, which is a great deterrent in the 13

area.  So all of this helps to calm the traffic, 14

slow down the traffic in the neighborhood.  I'm 15

not saying there's not any speeding in the 16

neighborhood but there's been a lot done in the 17

neighborhood to help reduce some of these issues 18

and concerns.  I'm almost done.  19

So let's talk about the projected 08:15:28PM 20

conditions.  We went through and highlighted for 21

each of the streets the additional traffic that 22
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would be generated by the school.  Along 1

northbound Monroe we are looking at an increase 2

of anywhere from 15 to maybe 23, 24 vehicles in 3

those peak hours.  That represents one additional 4

vehicle every two and a half to three and a half 5

minutes.  6

Southbound that volume is going to 7

be a little higher because they can't make the 8

left out.  We are looking at an increase 9

anywhere from 25 to 40 vehicles.  Once again, 08:16:04PM 10

that's about one vehicle every minute and a half 11

to two and a half minutes.  And on North it's 12

really low.  We are looking at an increase from 13

15 to maybe 20 vehicles.  14

Once again, this will not all be 15

new traffic because some of that traffic is 16

already generated by those vehicles that are 17

parking on the site.  So we will be adding 18

traffic but we also will be subtracting traffic.  19

So we are generating some traffic but it's what 08:16:32PM 20

I would say isn't significant in its capacity to 21

accommodate it.  22
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Once again, this is traffic just 1

during those peak periods.  The traffic is 2

already a little higher on the roadway.  It won't 3

be as easy to notice the increase in traffic.  4

It's not like it's occurring during the middle 5

of the day or at night or on weekends.  6

So that's pretty much my report.  I 7

am here to answer all of your questions.  I 8

thank you for your time.  9

MS. CRNOVICH:  I have a question.  08:17:06PM 10

Hinsdale Orthopaedics they were talking about 11

putting up an electric gate between their 12

parking lot and ManorCare.  I don't know if your 13

study reflects that.  So I guess what I'm saying 14

is the only way anybody would be able to access 15

ManorCare is from Ogden.16

MR. WERTHMAN:  So, Chuck, correct me if 17

I'm wrong, so ManorCare indicated that they are 18

going to move their vehicles offsite.  19

Hinsdale Orthopaedics came up with 08:17:38PM 20

several different scenarios.  One was to maybe 21

close off the connection between ManorCare to 22
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ensure that none of their patrons, employees, 1

park in their lot.   2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  They did say they 3

may install a gate at the south end of the lot.4

MR. WERTHMAN:  So these were things 5

they are thinking about doing.  I don't know if 6

anything has been set in stone.  They may 7

generate some additional traffic onto Monroe 8

that may be sneaking out the back to go to 9

ManorCare and out onto Ogden Avenue.  08:18:12PM 10

MS. CRNOVICH:  I do see that happening.11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  That could force 12

them to use the curb cut on Ogden versus --  13

MS. CRNOVICH:  Versus Monroe. 14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.  I actually 15

thought that was a decent idea.  16

MS. CRNOVICH:  I have seen cars cut 17

through ManorCare to make a left-hand turn onto 18

Ogden.  19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I loved your report 08:18:34PM 20

that you found six people doing the left turn 21

onto Ogden.  That's only one hour.22
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MR. WERTHMAN:  I have been out there 1

and I have seen them do it.  I always say at 2

public hearings it's a 90/10 rule.  90 percent 3

of the people follow the rules of the road and 4

whatever you do, 10 percent are not going to 5

follow it and if you probably add up the 6

numbers, I'm probably pretty close there.  7

MS. CRNOVICH:  I avoid Ogden if I can.8

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  One thing that was 9

interesting looking at the 2024 total projected 08:19:04PM 10

traffic volume.  So within this one hour window 11

7:45 to 8:45, which is the peak, it looks like 12

there's about 54 vehicles related to Kensington 13

coming into the site.14

MR. WERTHMAN:  Right.15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  So of the 150 16

children, what level -- how many cars would you 17

think would be generated?  18

MR. WERTHMAN:  So of the 150, it's 19

probably somewhere in the range of 120 maybe, 08:19:38PM 20

maybe 130 and when you distribute that over two 21

and a half hours.22
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CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  You basically have 1

from 6:30 to 7:45 not accounted for here?  2

MR. WERTHMAN:  Yes.  We just look at 3

the peak hours.  So we take the highest volume 4

on the roadway system and then the peak hour of 5

the school.6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  So outside of this 7

peak hour, there has to be another 70 vehicles.8

MR. WERTHMAN:  Yes.  But it's not going 9

to be in one hour.08:20:10PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Maybe get the kids 11

there early.  And then you said in the 12

distribution that's where you basically have 13

like 19 coming in going westbound coming into 14

the site, 4 coming off Monroe southbound, 19 15

northbound.  So you distributed it from about 16

half coming from the north and half from the 17

south, is that how you looked at it?  18

MR. WERTHMAN:  We looked at it -- and 19

if you look at page -- 08:20:44PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I was looking at 21

page 17.22
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MR. WERTHMAN:  If you go to page 13, it 1

shows the percentage.  So if you look at the 2

inbound, we got about 30 percent to and from the 3

east on 34 or Ogden, 30 percent from the west on 4

Ogden, 35 percent to the south, and then 5 percent 5

to the north on Madison and then when you exit 6

we only assign 15 percent of it to the west on 7

Ogden.  We assign the other 15 percent which 8

somehow filters south through the neighborhood 9

either to Chicago or down to the next street.  08:21:26PM 10

And this is my crystal ball, you know.11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I know it's a 12

projection.  It's interesting to see with the 13

current parking lot just those people afternoon 14

there's 17 southbound on Monroe.  15

MR. WERTHMAN:  So you can see that 17 16

will probably be gone now.  17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I live over in this 18

neighborhood and I have always assumed -- it was 19

just a gut that there was more southbound 08:21:56PM 20

traffic on Monroe than there was on Madison and 21

your numbers basically show that.  On your peak 22
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baseline data in the afternoon there's 60 more 1

cars heading southbound than there are on 2

Madison.  It makes sense because if you are 3

coming from 83, why would you go to the light.  4

And a lot of times during rush hour it's backed 5

up at the light so people wait and come south.6

MR. WERTHMAN:  Well, I think a lot of 7

that has to do -- a lot of that 190 is motorists 8

going to Westmont because they can't get in on 9

their first couple of streets.  So some of that 08:22:32PM 10

is coming down --  11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Clarendon Hills you 12

mean?  13

MR. WERTHMAN:  Yes.14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Clarendon Hills 15

there's a lot of restrictions there.16

MR. WERTHMAN:  They are coming down and 17

coming in too.  Likewise, the Hinsdale traffic 18

when it's going to 83, I'm sure it's cutting 19

into Clarendon Hills to make the right to get 08:22:50PM 20

onto Ogden to go onto 83.  So everyone is going 21

this way in the morning and they are coming back 22
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this way in the evening.1

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Any other questions?  2

MS. BRASELTON:  I have two questions.   3

Crash data to the extent that that is an 4

important part of the traffic study, I don't 5

really know, but the site's been vacant forever, 6

ten years, and the crash data only goes back 7

five years.  Can you go back further to when 8

that site was operating or does it even make a 9

difference?  08:23:32PM 10

MR. WERTHMAN:  We are looking at the 11

intersections of Monroe and Ogden and Madison 12

and Ogden and more it's to give you a sense if 13

there's an issue now or if there isn't and 14

neither of these are considered high accident 15

locations by IDOT.  I think you are averaging 16

five per year at Madison and Ogden and it was 17

eight at Ogden and Monroe, which you don't want 18

any accidents, but given how much traffic there 19

is on Ogden, it's a pretty low frequency of 08:24:12PM 20

accidents.21

MS. BRASELTON:  Okay.  22
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MR. JABLONSKI:  Your traffic study is 1

all great; I'm still concerned about the 2

parking.  ManorCare meets the code on their 3

parking.  Hinsdale Orthopaedics meets the code 4

on their parking.  You guys are going to be good 5

on your parking, yet 75 parking places are going 6

to disappear.  We are talking about staff, we 7

aren't talking about patients or visitors to 8

ManorCare.  There's still not enough parking.  9

Someone is going to have to convince 08:24:44PM 10

me that there's going to be enough parking.  I 11

know the village code is causing this problem, 12

it's not any of our individual businesses, but 13

we have a parking problem.  14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  There's clearly not 15

enough current parking for ManorCare and 16

Hinsdale Orthopaedics. 17

MS. BRASELTON:  Is ManorCare compliant?18

I don't know.19

MR. YU:  Those parking lots are not 08:25:04PM 20

compliant, they are precode. 21

MS. BRASELTON:  They are precode.22
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MR. JABLONSKI:  They are compliant with 1

their grandfathered nature; they are not breaking 2

the law.3

         MS. BRASELTON:  Right.  Exactly.4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  This has gone back 5

when ManorCare doubled in size in the early 6

'70s.  The parking lot expanded a little bit but 7

that was probably the opportunity where it 8

wasn't big enough and then Hinsdale Orthopaedics 9

that was built in the '60s and over a period of 08:25:30PM 10

time that lane of diagonal parking that's along 11

Monroe that was added, it's not original.  So at 12

some point they took some of the yard space 13

there and added some more parking.  14

I was happy to read in this summary 15

from Charles about the neighborhood meeting that 16

whoever owns this property, MIH, that they are 17

terminating that lease because in a way that's 18

been a band-aid.  It's been, you know, not 19

making ManorCare or Hinsdale Orthopaedics face 08:26:00PM 20

the fact that they don't have adequate parking.  21

So they have to change something.  They either 22
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have to move or move their staff.  1

I was just glad to see that 2

ManorCare from reading this and I heard I think 3

from Chan that they are in talks with Christ 4

Church to use that parking lot and shuttle their 5

staff in, have the staff use the parking there.  6

And Hinsdale Orthopaedics is going to have to do 7

something similar because they clearly aren't 8

going to have enough parking space.  9

I was encouraged what I read about 08:26:24PM 10

the community meeting about the village's interest11

in not having the problem move its way up to 12

North Street.  If anything happens, then there's 13

no street parking so there's no impact there in 14

the neighborhood.  I doubt that employees from 15

these businesses would walk that far.  I just 16

wouldn't want them doing that because it would 17

really ruin the quiet nature of that 18

neighborhood.  19

MR. JABLONSKI:  But the valet parking 08:26:54PM 20

could run there.  They run valet parking over 21

there along Hinsdale Orthopaedics.  There's 22
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plenty of valet.  1

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Where do they put 2

the cars? 3

MR. JABLONSKI:  They are probably 4

running them across the street.  That's where 5

some people say there's 40 cars parked there and 6

some people think there's 70 cars parked there 7

depending on when they do it.8

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I certainly don't 9

want them to be running to North or anywhere 08:27:20PM 10

else in the residential neighborhood because 11

that's not acceptable.12

MR. WERTHMAN:  And I'll add just two 13

points, and I totally understand your concern.  14

One, Chuck is meeting his 15

requirements and two, if we came in with 16

residential here, those spaces are going to be 17

gone and they could go in by right by 18

residential.  19

So at least we are being proactive 08:27:46PM 20

in trying to work through this where if a 21

residential developer came in, he would just 22
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have started building.  So at least the fact we 1

are going through the special use and appearing 2

in front of you and we are kind of all working 3

together to resolve this.  So I think in the end 4

it will help.5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  It's an interesting 6

point because there was an email we received 7

from one of the neighbors about the -- you know, 8

we have these eight homes that are being 9

proposed, but if there were seven or eight 08:28:10PM 10

proposed where Kensington School is going to 11

sit, what kind of traffic impact.  I don't see 12

it in your -- I guess you show coming out of the 13

eight, you are showing in the morning basically 14

six cars coming out, in the afternoon three 15

coming out.16

MR. WERTHMAN:  In general a single- 17

family home generates 10 trips a day.  So if you 18

have 16 homes, you are going to generate 160 19

trips per day.08:28:42PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Seems like there's 21

more trips coming out of my house.  22
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MR. WERTHMAN:  I said on average.1

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Sure.  Other 2

commissioners with questions regarding traffic? 3

MS. FIASCONE:  A neighbor proposed a 4

light at Monroe and Ogden.  Wouldn't that create 5

more people coming east down on Ogden to turn 6

onto Monroe if they were going to turn instead 7

of turning onto Madison?  8

MR. WERTHMAN:  Yes.  If you put a 9

signal at Monroe and Ogden, you wouldn't have 08:29:34PM 10

the left turn restriction anymore and you would 11

probably get more traffic on Monroe at that 12

location.  More importantly, we don't meet -- 13

the existing volumes don't warrant a traffic 14

signal at this point.  IDOT makes you have a 15

certain volume of traffic and given the 16

proximity between Madison and 83, it's unlikely 17

there would be a signal.18

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  How far off that 19

mark can you, like, measure the distance?  08:30:08PM 20

MR. WERTHMAN:  If you are ever going to 21

get a signal there, it will probably be until 22
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the property to the north develops and if they 1

line up opposite Monroe and maybe you can close 2

off Adams and you come around and then you have 3

the spacing, but who knows when that's going to 4

develop and what's going to happen.  5

You know, Monroe, that left turn 6

restriction is penalizing Madison in the fact 7

that there's more traffic going over to Madison.  8

You can clearly see the difference in the 9

direction of traffic in the northbound versus 08:30:42PM 10

southbound.  I feel for everyone in the 11

neighborhood, but Monroe with that left turn 12

restriction is really keeping the traffic down. 13

MR. WILLOBEE:  For a light do you have 14

to have a certain cuing distance as well?  15

MR. WERTHMAN:  Yes.  You are supposed 16

to have quarter mile spacing.  So getting a 17

signal there will not be easy and right now, you 18

just don't meet the volume.  That property to 19

the north would have to come in and probably be 08:31:12PM 20

pretty dense or retail or something commercial, 21

office, to that extent, to really meet the 22

Attachment 1 - PC Min. 3.14.18 - Case A-44-17



13 of 38 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

146

volumes that you need.  Because I believe 1

Madison is probably a quarter mile from -- 2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  And it's one block.  3

I can't imagine we would have another light that 4

close.  To me it was interesting that it came up 5

with some previous studies.6

MR. WERTHMAN:  I'll never say never but 7

right now it's not going to happen until 8

something to the north builds.9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Would there ever be 08:31:44PM 10

a trigger that would prevent the westbound left 11

hand southbound onto Monroe, westbound turning 12

south?  13

MR. WERTHMAN:  I don't know unless it 14

becomes a terrible accident problem, but it's 15

been that way for years; and like I said, you 16

know -- the interesting thing, I was thinking 17

about this on the way in, thinking about the 18

left turn here or at the access drive, these are 19

people that are starting -- most of them are 08:32:12PM 20

coming west and they are starting at York where 21

it's down to four lanes.  So you are driving for 22
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a good half mile, mile, realizing you are on a 1

four-lane section, there's people stopping to 2

turn into the other road.  It's not like the 3

first access drive where it goes down to four 4

lanes, you are the last one.  So as a driver, 5

you are understanding you are on a four-lane 6

road, people are going to stop, you got to be 7

prepared for that.  So that also helps in the 8

whole realm of things here.9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  When I'm coming 08:32:48PM 10

westbound, I'm always looking to see if someone 11

is going to cut down one of those residential 12

streets.13

MR. WERTHMAN:  I'm sure if we counted 14

by lane, it wouldn't be a lane balance where the 15

volume of traffic was equal on each lane.  You 16

probably have a higher volume, maybe of 60 17

percent 40 in that outside lane because people 18

just realize people are going to stop and make a 19

left turn.08:33:10PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jim?21

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Do you have any 22
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experience with the arrangement that ManorCare 1

has with Christ Church to park and then bus 2

their employees?  Is there incidence of 3

circumvention?4

MR. WERTHMAN:  From the employees? 5

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  From the employees, 6

they park on North Avenue or some place that -- 7

maybe that's a unique enough -- 8

MR. WERTHMAN:  It's a great question, 9

and I think it comes back to the 90/10 rule and 08:33:40PM 10

that 90 percent will.  I think ManorCare has to 11

be pretty strict in how they enforce what's 12

going on with the employees and we talked a lot 13

about this at the meeting that we will all 14

monitor it.  15

If necessary, we will put the 16

appropriate no parking signs up and the 17

neighbors have a lot of questions about where 18

they will go and the timelines and all of that 19

and Chan indicated that we would all work 08:34:10PM 20

together.  And then one of the big questions was 21

do we put them up initially to teach them and if 22
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after a year or six months can we take the signs 1

down, and we are all willing to work together 2

because people don't want all the sign clutter 3

and they want to be able to park.  4

What I would say is don't put them 5

up initially, let's see if it happens.  And 6

then -- and you may differ with me, I'm open to 7

anything.  If it becomes a problem, then put 8

them up.  Because it may not be a problem and 9

why put the signs up.08:34:42PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I would think there 11

would be a lot of motivation on ManorCare's 12

management part to make sure that the parking 13

spaces are for the customers and families not 14

ManorCare staff and it's pretty easy to tell 15

whose vehicles are going to be whose.16

MS. BRASELTON:  We did that with our 17

downtown employee parking for decades.18

MR. WERTHMAN:  It's easy to do.  You 19

get a staff member to walk around, take some 08:35:06PM 20

plates down, see how long they are parking.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Any other questions?22
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MR. KRILLENBERGER:  That's all I have.  1

MS. BRASELTON:  Good.  2

MR. JABLONSKI:  I voiced my concern.  3

MS. CRNOVICH:  I'm good.  4

MR. WILLOBEE:  Good.  5

MS. FIASCONE:  No.6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I did want -- before 7

we open up to citizens, I did have some concern 8

back to the site plan.  And this is something 9

that if this goes forward, I would like it to be 08:35:34PM 10

investigated is the location of the refuse 11

enclosure.  12

I appreciate the fact that it's not 13

on the east side where the neighbors' homes are, 14

but our code specifically addresses this 15

location.  No refuse containers or storage areas 16

shall be located between any principal structure 17

in either its front or corner side lot line.  18

I would, you know, weighing the 19

loading zone versus this, I would rather see 08:36:06PM 20

this moved to the west or south and then back 21

away from Monroe and heavily landscaped and 22
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hidden.  You basically are going to lose some 1

playground area but get it so it's behind the 2

west space of the structure so it's compliant 3

because I think that -- I understand your use 4

and the fact that there's going to be a special 5

use permit for this property, I do think as the 6

village flexibility in the future if the use 7

changed somehow, you are not there and they need 8

a loading zone, it's a problem, but then they 9

can address that problem but you are always 08:36:40PM 10

going to have garbage. 11

MR. MARLAS:  Sure.  So move it south?  12

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes, move it south.  13

It's just it's in a very visible location.  14

MR. MARLAS:  We do brick piers and wood 15

fencing and we landscape heavily around it.  I 16

mean, you really don't notice it.  17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes, but it's still, 18

like, it's not permitted and so you would 19

literally have to get it behind that west space 08:37:00PM 20

of the building.  21

MR. MARLAS:  In back of the yard?  22
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CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.  Because that's 1

your corner side yard.  You can't be, you know, 2

either between the building and Ogden or between 3

the building and Monroe.  4

MS. CRNOVICH:  Is that a corner side 5

yard or a side yard? 6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Corner side yard.  7

The side yard is the small one over here.  8

MS. CRNOVICH:  Okay.  I was looking at 9

that too.  And then I think too when you do the 08:37:22PM 10

landscaping for the playground, you will have to 11

look at Section 9-107H and that's for non- 12

dwelling uses abutting residential use and you 13

will need a larger buffer zone but that will be 14

for the next meeting.15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  You are showing some 16

fencing but one thing that will definitely be 17

required is there's going to have to be a 18

minimum of a six foot solid fence on the entire 19

south property line.  08:37:50PM 20

MR. MARLAS:  That's what we have there.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right now it looks 22
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like it stops short but it's not clearly shown.  1

It has to go all the way to the property line. 2

MR. MARLAS:  All the way up, okay.  3

That's fine.4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  It states clearly 5

the entire property line.  6

MR. MARLAS:  Sure.7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Those are things we 8

went through before.  With that, I appreciate 9

everyone's patience and I'd like to open it up 08:38:14PM 10

to comments from the neighbors and community.  11

If you could please tell us who you 12

are and recognize some faces and let us hear 13

what you have to say.14

MR. LANDIS:  Dirk Landis.  I'm a  15

resident of North Street.  16

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  You were the host, 17

right?  18

MR. LANDIS:  First of all, with the 19

village's help and everybody pitching in, I 08:38:46PM 20

think we made real good progress since the last 21

meeting.  Both Hinsdale Orthopaedics and 22
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ManorCare, as you know, are making this 1

arrangement which does sound good and we really 2

appreciate it.  In the back of my mind I have 3

this nagging thing.  I'm an orthopedic surgeon, 4

I can be riding in a shuttle or I can go about 5

200 yards up the street and park on North.  6

What's my choice?  So, plans aside, there's that 7

issue.  I don't know if there's any way to 8

resolve.  Probably ManorCare will get more 9

compliance because they are not orthopedic 08:39:22PM 10

surgeons.  11

So we went out and test ran some of 12

the things.  I don't know if you saw the -- 13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.  14

MR. LANDIS:  And everything seemed to 15

work out in terms of numbers pretty much like 16

the study said it would.  My principal concerns 17

were that left turn into the parking lot.  18

There's one turn where I could just go right 19

away, there's no wait.  But at one point I was 08:39:52PM 20

up to a minute and a quarter waiting and that 21

traffic is moving at 40 miles an hour and I'm 22
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putting in my head, I have a kid in the back 1

seat too, what am I going to do?  I'm going to 2

go around the block to enter.  3

And I hear what they say about net 4

it won't be all addition.  It's going to be 5

pretty close to it because right now if you go 6

down and look at the end of the day cars are 7

exiting to the left on Ogden which they will not 8

be permitted to.  Right now, I believe -- it's 9

for appearance.  I don't know this to be a fact.  08:40:20PM 10

Most of the access to that parking lot is in and 11

off of Ogden, I believe.  I would not swear an 12

oath.13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  In one hour they are 14

showing three cars going westbound, nine going 15

eastbound.  16

MR. LANDIS:  So I think that there will 17

be additional traffic coming in there that 18

doesn't choose to wait out there in the lane and 19

turn in.  No way to absolutely know that for 08:40:46PM 20

certain.  21

I went past the -- spent about a 22

156

half hour, they probably thought I was a 1

stalker, sitting in the parking lot of the 2

Elmhurst facility and it went very well.  It was  3

very smooth.  The numbers were just about the 4

numbers here.  It appeared that about 15 percent 5

of the cars had more than one child in them, you 6

know, two instead of one.  About 85 percent had 7

just one.  8

There are some significant 9

differences though.  And question came up 08:41:14PM 10

tonight I hadn't really looked at before.  I 11

just assumed traffic was flowing through, which 12

it did in the Elmhurst facility.  I was a little 13

confused in the discussion tonight is the flow 14

going to be in and back out on Monroe so I want 15

to look at that again.  16

But the fundamental difference in 17

the two sites is on that Spring Road access, all 18

of the entrance and exit is on Spring Road and 19

things aren't going into the neighborhood and 08:41:42PM 20

while there's a lot of traffic, it's slow at 21

that time of day.  I mean, you have the high 22
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school coming in too, so nobody had any problem 1

making right turns or left turns or whatever, 2

they came in, they don't park, they leave the 3

car there, take the child in, they come out and 4

they make a left turn or a right turn.  That's 5

not going to be as easy in this facility.  I 6

mean, it's just not going to be the same.  7

But I understand, you know, things 8

change and I'm not totally opposed to this.  9

They have a good reputation and the parking is a 08:42:18PM 10

number one concern and I'm glad that the two 11

organizations are trying to address it.  We will 12

see how it goes.  We prefer not to even have no 13

parking signs in our yards.  But if we really 14

got the parking under control, I'd be a lot 15

happier.  16

In the email I put there I talked 17

about not a permanent light there but if you 18

went to IDOT and said for two hours in the 19

morning, or even an hour and a half in the 08:42:50PM 20

morning, and an hour and a half in the 21

afternoon, for safety there we would like to 22

Attachment 1 - PC Min. 3.14.18 - Case A-44-17



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 16 of 38 sheets

158

have a stoplight, then anybody who wanted to go 1

out onto Ogden can go out onto Ogden and you 2

wouldn't have people going around the 3

neighborhood to go in there off Monroe.  4

Also, while I'm not an expert 5

forecasting, I'm going to guess that most of the 6

traffic that's going to come in there are going 7

to be people who have driven by it on Ogden, see 8

it and say, I'm going by there anyway, I'm going 9

to drop my child off in the morning and I think 08:43:16PM 10

there's probably going to be significantly more 11

activity coming from west of the facility on 12

Ogden.  Again, I'm not an expert but just 13

looking at that.  14

Another principal concern I have is 15

we are talking about we have to have the garbage 16

right in case this goes to another facility.  17

Well, what happens if this doesn't work and it's 18

now O-2.  We talked about a special use permit.  19

My guess is that's a lot easier to change, 08:43:44PM 20

especially if we have a facility sitting there 21

empty like Amling's did.  22
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What are the restrictions?  We are 1

looking at this school.  People.  Traffic.  Not 2

much in the day, nothing on the weekends.  But 3

what could it become?  And what's the 4

opportunity if it ever is sold to something else 5

in the future to even look back again?  We 6

haven't even talked about that.  And so as 7

neighbors, we haven't even thought about -- I 8

have no idea what those controls are.  But that 9

would be a real issue for us.  08:44:14PM 10

So that would be it.  I'm 11

optimistic on the parking even though I'm 12

concerned about people just feeling it's a whole 13

lot easier to come up to our street.  They have 14

done it in the past before that parking lot 15

opened down there, so it's not too far.  They 16

absolutely will.  But with everybody's 17

commitment and the village's cooperation, 18

hopefully we can run that.  19

I am very concerned about the 08:44:50PM 20

traffic and hearing statistics that the roadways 21

are designed sufficiently to carry the traffic 22
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doesn't give me a lot of comfort.  I don't want 1

the amount of traffic those roadways are 2

designed to carry.  Thanks very much.  3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you. 4

MS. BRASELTON:  Thank you. 5

MS. SCODRO:  Good evening.  Laura 6

Scodro.  I'm on North Street between Madison and 7

Monroe Street.  8

And just the talk with Christ 9

Church, that's not finalized yet.  That talk 08:45:26PM 10

with Christ Church, that's just in the talking 11

phase, nothing is finalized.  So there is no 12

shuttle right now, okay.  13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right. 14

MS. SCODRO:  Everybody keeps forgetting 15

this is a neighborhood two blocks from Monroe 16

school.  All the children that are walking to 17

school at that time is during your peak hour of 18

drop off and pickup.  So we are increasing 19

people coming down Monroe, North and Madison at 08:45:44PM 20

the time that school children are walking to 21

school and standing at bus stops and I think you 22
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all need to really pay attention.  I'm concerned 1

about the parking also but I'm concerned about 2

the increased traffic when we are a 3

neighborhood.  4

When we bought 25 years ago, we 5

went to the village to make sure what would 6

happen if the Amling's ever sold or went away 7

and we were told it would go to residential 8

housing.  So I would like you all to make it 9

residential housing.  That's what we bought.  08:46:14PM 10

That's what our property value is based on.  11

Belluomini's sold and they went to residential 12

housing so I don't see why it won't work in our 13

neighborhood too.  So if you all could keep that 14

in consideration and maybe honor what the zoning 15

was put in when everybody bought in that 16

neighborhood, I'd really appreciate it. 17

MR. SADLOWSKI:  My name is Don 18

Sadlowski, S-a-d-l-o-w-s-k-i, and I live at 532 19

West North Street.  Thank you very much for the 08:47:00PM 20

opportunity to address you this evening.  21

I think we have had a lot of 22
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conversation at the last meeting about parking.  1

I'm very concerned about the parking.  I think 2

there's inadequate parking for the two existing 3

commercial facilities that are there and to add 4

a third one, makes no sense to me, especially 5

since we haven't resolved the problem with the 6

two that are there already.  7

I really liked going through the 8

traffic study.  I think there was a lot of very 9

valuable information and a lot of very 08:47:34PM 10

interesting information.  And I think that going 11

through this it was -- my mind was kind of 12

churning as I was going through it and when I 13

came to the conclusions that were in the report, 14

I stepped back and said well, this is really 15

kind of interesting.  It's not what I would have 16

assumed would have been in the conclusions.  17

And then I stopped to think about 18

what some of the assumptions were that were used 19

in coming to some of these conclusions.  And 08:47:56PM 20

while there are a lot of different assumptions 21

and there are a lot of different charts and 22

163

tables in this report, I would like to just 1

maybe focus on one as an example.  And I'm going 2

to focus on page 16 in the report, which is the 3

estimated site generated traffic volumes.  4

And the consulting firm did a very 5

nice job of delineating incoming traffic, outgoing 6

traffic at the peak hours and this page 16 really 7

primarily deals -- I want to focus on the peak 8

hours in the evening and the outbound because I 9

think that that's going to be probably fairly 08:48:34PM 10

representative of what the outbound traffic is 11

going to be in the morning as well.  12

And in looking at the tables that 13

were in the report, they came to the conclusion 14

that there would only be 13 cars that would go 15

southbound on North Street -- no, southbound on 16

Monroe Street and make a left-hand turn onto 17

North.  And if you go back and look at what some 18

of the assumptions are that are built into that, 19

first of all, they make the assumption that 08:49:08PM 20

there's 25 percent of the clients and 25 percent 21

of the staff are going to carpool.  22
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The second assumption that's 1

inherent in that is that 70 percent of the 2

people who exit the facility are going to go 3

south on Monroe Street, 30 percent are going to 4

turn east onto Ogden.  5

The third assumption that they make 6

is that at the corner of North and Monroe, 30 7

percent of the cars will be turning left onto 8

North Street, 70 percent of the cars will either 9

continue to go south on Monroe or they will turn 08:49:46PM 10

east on North Street.  11

And if you just take a minute and 12

just think about those assumptions and maybe 13

tweak them a little bit and say what happens 14

that there's no substantiation for how these 15

assumptions were arrived at to begin with so 16

let's just change them a little bit and see what 17

happens and that's what I did.  18

I assumed instead of a 25 percent 19

carpool rate, that there was going to be a 08:50:16PM 20

10 percent carpool rate.  And that just seemed a 21

little bit more reasonable to me.  The next 22
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thing I looked at was the number of cars exiting 1

onto Ogden versus the number of cars exiting 2

onto Monroe Street.  And if you look at the 3

report, it talks about the fact that there's a 4

big backup on Ogden and the cue goes past the 5

exit from the existing property and a lot of the 6

cars that are going to exit eastbound onto Ogden 7

are going to have to wait for courtesy outs.  In 8

other words, somebody is going to have to stop 9

and let them out and let them out.  08:50:52PM 10

So instead of taking the assumption 11

that 30 percent of the cars exit eastbound on 12

Ogden, let's drop it down to 20 percent and 13

let's say that instead of 70 percent going south 14

on Monroe, it becomes 80 percent.  15

The last thing that I would like to 16

change is what the traffic flow is going to look 17

like at the corner of Monroe and North Street.  18

Instead of having 70 percent of the traffic 19

either going south on Monroe or turning west on 08:51:20PM 20

North Street and 30 percent going east on North 21

Street, I'm not sure why that breakout is 70/30.  22
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I don't know what it's going to be.  But let's 1

just say what happens if it's 50/50?  50 percent 2

of the cars continue north on Monroe Street and 3

50 percent make the left-hand turn onto North 4

Street.  5

If you incorporate those three 6

little tweaks in those assumptions, the number 7

of cars that are going to be going eastbound on 8

North Street goes from 13 to 37 in one peak 9

hour.  Over a 2-hour period that means it goes 08:51:58PM 10

from 26 to 74 cars, 74 additional cars.  Of 11

those 74 additional cars that are going to be 12

going eastbound on North Street, how many of 13

those are going to get to Madison Street and 14

make a left and go up to the light?  15

The report does a nice job of 16

delineating the problem with the intersection of 17

Ogden and Madison and it shows that the level of 18

service criteria for that intersection is 19

already categorized as category F and the report 08:52:40PM 20

says that -- or defines a category F as a 21

situation where the volume to capacity ratio is 22
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very high, progression is very poor and the 1

cycle lanes is long.  Most cycles fail to clear 2

the cue.  And that's the worst rating you can get 3

for an intersection according to their report.  4

Now, we are going to add 74 cars in 5

a 2-hour period to that intersection potentially.  6

Maybe it's not 74 cars.  Maybe it's 50 cars.  7

Maybe it's 30 cars.  But we are going to 8

certainly see an increase in traffic flow that's 9

going to be northbound on Madison Street going 08:53:14PM 10

into those lights.  11

And it's just -- so anyway, I just 12

think that there are a number of assumptions 13

that are made in this report and tweaking them a 14

little bit one way or the other can certainly 15

lead to a different conclusion and I just think 16

that it's important to think about that and 17

consider it.  18

The other thing that I think is 19

important, just in closing, is that we have had 08:53:48PM 20

a number of people at the last meeting that were 21

residents of the neighborhood that came to voice 22
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their objection to this application.  We have a 1

number of residents from the neighborhood that 2

are here tonight to voice their objection to 3

this application.  I haven't heard -- and the 4

objections are based on parking, increased 5

traffic flow and safety.  I haven't heard one 6

person from the neighborhood or the village at 7

large that's come here and voiced their support 8

for this application.  Thank you very much. 9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you. 08:54:24PM 10

MS. BRASELTON:  Thank you. 11

MS. MOBERLY:  Hi.  My name is Karen 12

Moberly.  I live on Warren Terrace at the corner 13

of Madison and Warren Terrace.  I'm a 26-year 14

resident of the overall Monroe school area and 15

have always lived in fairly close proximity to 16

the Amling's property.  17

I want to echo Laura's concern 18

about when we built our house we inquired as to 19

the zoning and the Amling's property and it was 08:54:56PM 20

told the underlying zoning was residential and 21

made a decision to build our house based on that 22
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-- in part, based on that information.  So I 1

would hope -- and when the current owner of that 2

property purchased it, they knew that was the 3

underlying zoning.  So they purchased it with 4

the intent of hoping to up zone and literally 5

bulldoze the community of Hinsdale into changing 6

that zoning.  7

So it would be my hope that the 8

planning commission and the trustees would 9

really respect the opinions and preference of 08:55:32PM 10

the current residents who prefer to adhere to 11

the code as much as they would to builders and 12

developers who want to change the code for their 13

benefit.  So that's kind of background.  14

I wasn't able to get off work to 15

come to the last meeting so I want to kind of 16

rewind on one issue and ask if we are going to 17

have all this disruption to the community, who 18

does Kensington School really serve?  19

I guess I find it very difficult to 08:56:00PM 20

believe it primarily serves the needs of the 21

residents of Hinsdale.  The description of what 22
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service is provided here keeps shifting from 1

only day-care to all day preschool.  I have seen 2

a lot of descriptions, so I kind of want to 3

address both those services on the day-care  4

front.  5

My experience as a resident and 6

working parent is that the demand for day-care 7

for infants and very young children is essentially 8

little to none by Hinsdale residents.  Hinsdale 9

is a smaller, relatively homogeneous community 08:56:32PM 10

unlike many of the towns where Kensington 11

schools now operates.  Unlike Elmhurst, unlike 12

LaGrange, unlike Wheaton and Naperville, this is 13

a community with many stay-at-home moms, moms 14

who work from home or families that use nannies.15

I would encourage you just to look 16

at any district 81 school around lunchtime or 17

the evening recess, the afternoon recess, the 18

cue of parents picking up their student is 19

absolutely overwhelming.  It is three blocks in 08:57:06PM 20

every direction.  These are stay-at-home parents 21

picking up their kids, ready to chauffeur them 22
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to their next doctor appointment or activity.  1

These are not people sending their kids to 2

day-care.  They just aren't.  3

I would argue that the goals and 4

reasons people move to Hinsdale kind of in 5

opposition to sending your kid to all day 6

day-care, especially a very young child.  7

In terms of a preschool, a simple 8

Google or Yelp search turns up 13 highly-rated 9

preschools in the Hinsdale and Clarendon school 08:57:44PM 10

area.  It's really difficult for me to believe 11

we are underserved by preschools.  12

My second concern about the proposed 13

development is traffic despite the conclusions 14

of the study.  I guess in contrast to the study's 15

point of view, I would characterize the entire 16

surrounding area of the site as predominantly 17

residential.  They actually say it's predominantly 18

commercial going north and west but, in fact, 19

going north commercial buildings are one lot 08:58:16PM 20

deep and they back up to residential properties 21

with residences stretching all the way to 22
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Fullersburg Woods.  Going west there are two 1

commercial buildings followed by several  2

entirely residential streets.  So you really 3

have to be taking an ant's eye view to 4

characterize any part of the area as dominantly 5

commercial.  It is dominantly residential.  And 6

we need to consider that as we consider this 7

proposal. 8

I understand that the traffic study 9

finds capacity for more cars on the streets 08:58:48PM 10

surrounding the proposed school.  I echo the 11

concerns of people who have already spoke.  I 12

don't want to get anywhere near that capacity.  13

This is a residential area, it is not downtown 14

Chicago.  15

Most importantly, I wanted to call 16

your attention to the difference in traffic that 17

occurs due to the proposed development versus 18

maintaining the underlying zoning.  That really 19

is the relevant point of comparison to me not 08:59:16PM 20

versus what we already have in a suboptimal 21

situation.  22
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The traffic study on table four 1

estimates 108 trips for Kensington School 2

compared to 8 trips for the single-family home.  3

If you said we had 8 single-family homes where 4

the Kensington School was going to be, that's 14 5

times the number of trips you generate with 6

single-family homes.  That to me is a stunning 7

number.  That's just terrible.  Why do we want 8

to put all that extra stress on our streets?  9

And in fact, once something is done 08:59:56PM 10

with that property, the residences, the Hinsdale 11

Orthopaedics, ManorCare are going to have to 12

solve their parking problem some way and move 13

those cars out.  So I think you really kind of 14

have to de-couple those two issues and not kind 15

of have the point of view that if we do 16

Kensington School, it's going to help us solve 17

the problem across the street or it kind of 18

relates to that.  They are really two distinct 19

issues and as one domino falls, the other one is 09:00:28PM 20

going to fall no matter what is put on that site.  21

I also believe the assumptions as 22
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have already been cited in the traffic study 1

underestimate the impact on North Street east of 2

Monroe and on Madison Street between North and 3

Ogden.  Kensington has previously stated they 4

draw from a three-mile radius.  With three 5

Kensington schools already located east of 6

Hinsdale in LaGrange and Western Springs and 7

much of the northbound area occupied by the 8

forest preserve, the golf course and the 9

McDonald's campus, it stands to reason the 09:01:08PM 10

school will draw primarily from the west and the 11

south.  Three miles west stretches all the way 12

to Fairview Avenue in Downers Grove.  This means 13

numerous families will likely need to head west, 14

especially at pickup, putting even more pressure 15

on the light at Ogden and Madison.  16

The driving on Madison is very 17

aggressive.  I live right there, I see it every 18

day.  A year ago somebody knocked over the fire 19

hydrant at the corner of our property.  People 09:01:34PM 20

as they come down the street and they see the 21

light is green, they speed up to make the light.  22
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I have been slowing down to turn -- many times I 1

slow down to turn into my corner, somebody is 2

passing me in order to make the light.  Their 3

driving is incredibly aggressive because people 4

know that that light is short.  They jackrabbit 5

across to make a left when I'm coming southbound 6

from Fullersburg Woods.  It's a very, very 7

aggressive corner.  8

And I would also remind you that 9

this traffic study was conducted during the 09:02:08PM 10

winter.  During the summer there are a lot of 11

bicyclists and there are a lot of pedestrians 12

along Madison.  Many of them going over to Salt 13

Creek.  There are a lot of kids with their 14

tennis rackets, with their swimming gear, using 15

that intersection and that road to cross on and 16

it would be at peak hours because they are going 17

to swim meets and early tennis lessons so they 18

are out there in the morning as well as in the 19

late afternoon.  09:02:36PM 20

And as other people have said, my 21

final concern is just of the long-term 22
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implications of rezoning this site.  What if 1

Kensington is not successful?  What types of 2

businesses and traffic patterns does that open 3

the neighborhood to in the future?  Once the 4

genie is out of the bottle on residential 5

zoning, what is to stop some future more 6

intrusive commercial use?  7

Rezoning the parcel potentially 8

opens the door up to what I have called in 9

business a successive degradation.  That 09:03:02PM 10

situation in which each individual change you 11

make is a modest decline in quality versus the 12

situation that existed directly prior to it but 13

when the impact of multiple successive changes 14

is viewed cumulatively, the decline in quality 15

is large.  You look back and say one day how did 16

we get here?  Thank you. 17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.18

MR. MOBERLY:  Hi.  My name is Gary 19

Moberly.  I am the spouse of Karen Moberly.  09:03:36PM 20

She's the smart, articulate one in the family.  21

I should mention -- I forgot to 22
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mention last time.  I'm on the zoning board of 1

appeals.  So a lot of you know that already.  2

I'm just speaking for myself.  I don't want to 3

speak for my neighbors, just for myself.  4

I'm opposed to this -- I'll just 5

come out and say it right now -- for all the 6

reasons the other folks have:  Traffic and 7

parking.  8

As you know, the purpose of the 9

grandfather business, this was grandfathered in 09:04:02PM 10

as you all know.  You know the code better than 11

I do.  And the purpose of grandfathering is to 12

slowly bring things back to the code.  And I 13

hear some folks say this was commercial.  It's 14

not commercial, it's residential.  It needs to 15

revert to residential.  Going from R-4 zoning to 16

O-2, that's a real big leap.  That's what 17

concerns us all here.  18

Just to briefly review a couple of 19

other projects recently in Hinsdale.  The 09:04:32PM 20

Hinsdale Meadows project.  That was residential.  21

I don't want to buy a $950,000 duplex over there 22
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but they are making incremental changes to the 1

code based on a demand.  This is not an 2

incremental change.  3

I hear people say that nobody wants 4

to put single-family houses at Ogden and Monroe.  5

That's a tough, tough intersection; I get that.  6

But we really haven't explored other options.  7

It could be a dozen townhouses or something and 8

single family so you kept the whole thing 9

residential and you kept the car counts down to 09:05:06PM 10

25 to 30 to 40.  It's just this really big car 11

count that coincides with children going to 12

school.  13

And I don't want to put words in 14

anybody's mouth.  I talked to Tom Cauley about 15

this.  He called me a couple of months back.  He 16

said one of his goals was to get this thing 17

accomplished before he leaves office and it's 18

because what happens if he's not there, what 19

happens if we turn this down, what could be 09:05:32PM 20

next?  And I find that's a very low standard.  21

Really, we have to break our zoning 22
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code because if this doesn't happen, and another 1

board of trustees comes in, we put a Portillo's 2

there.  I think that standard is just too low.  3

We need to really be as close to the code as we 4

possibly can, make minor modifications if we 5

need to, this is a tough intersection.  But this 6

proposal is just going to drive too many cars 7

and too much traffic and too many unresolved 8

parking concerns.  9

Hinsdale Orthopaedics/ManorCare is 09:06:02PM 10

what happens when good intentions kind of get 11

out of control and we have an ability here to 12

stop this and to bring this property in 13

compliance with the code.  Thank you.  14

MS. NAPLETON:  My name is Kathy 15

Napleton.  I'm at 406 North Monroe.  So right on 16

the corner of Monroe and North and we bought our 17

property in 1989.  18

Amling's was there, which was a big 19

concern for us because we had five young 09:06:40PM 20

children at that time.  And we were assured when 21

we called the zoning office that it would be -- 22
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if Amling's were to leave, not another big 1

commercial thing would go in there, it would 2

revert back to zoning as a residential area and 3

that's what we have always been told.  It's what 4

-- we remodeled our house again ten years ago.  5

We want to stay.  We want to stay forever and I 6

just would like to see it be -- I'm just 7

disappointed it's not staying zoned as a 8

residential area.  That's what it should be.  If 9

you ride down Ogden outside of the animal 09:07:14PM 10

hospital, everything else is residential area.  11

And as far as ManorCare and 12

Hinsdale Orthopaedics, I know they are very 13

concerned and they seem quite sincere.  But when 14

Monroe went from parking on two sides to one 15

side, then one side to zero, the cars were up by 16

us.  17

And as far as busing them, it's a 18

wonderful idea and it would be wonderful if it 19

worked, but if you are dropping kids off 09:07:40PM 20

somewhere, you are going to work, you are late, 21

you are not going to go all the way over to 22
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Christ Church, or wherever it may be, you are 1

going to go to the closest place you can park 2

your car and get to work as fast as you can so 3

you are not late.  There's just too many 4

scenarios that can go too many different ways 5

and I really, really wish you would reconsider 6

the whole scenario.  Thank you.  7

Thank you also for being on the 8

board.  I don't know how you do it every month.  9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.  We are 09:08:08PM 10

highly paid.  11

Anyone else like to speak?  Okay.  12

Hearing none, thank you.  13

Commissioners, discussion?  Any 14

questions for the applicant?  Anna?  15

MS. FIASCONE:  Thank you all for 16

speaking tonight and sharing your concerns.  17

They are very valid and sitting on this 18

commission for three years we have had so much 19

what ifs as it relates to this property and I 09:08:54PM 20

just have to say I think it's a good compromise.  21

I'm a young mom who, you know, 22
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every single mom in my kid's second grade class 1

except for three, the moms work and they do need 2

this actually.  We go to Clarendon Hills and 3

LaGrange and Westmont for all day care and I do 4

think it serves a need for our community.  So 5

I'm actually in favor of it. 6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Mark?  7

MR. WILLOBEE:  I think Jerry alluded to 8

this and I think I did at the last meeting.  For 9

me I'm wrestling most with the map amendment 09:09:42PM 10

side of things as most of us.  I think the 11

parking issue is going to be an issue.  12

With respect to the map amendment, 13

it's zoned residential.  We have the 2025 plan, 14

which I think actually hits on what Ms. Moberly 15

described as a mixture of residential as a kind 16

of a complement of town homes or things like 17

that.  So a lot of contention for the 18

residential.  19

Last meeting, this meeting, we had 09:10:08PM 20

educated residents that had called the village 21

at the time of the purchase to find out about 22
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that property, but I also agree with Anna it's a 1

good compromise though.  2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Julie?  3

MS. CRNOVICH:  I'm torn about the map 4

amendment, but I do realize this property has 5

been vacant for ten plus years; it has been an 6

eyesore.  I think the increased traffic would be 7

minimal.  8

ManorCare and Hinsdale Orthopaedics, 9

they need to solve their problem.  I don't know 09:10:46PM 10

if we should even be considering that with this 11

application and that parking I believe it was 12

part of an agreement, the settlement from the 13

lawsuit, but that parking should never have been 14

allowed over there because you can't have a 15

parking lot in a residential neighborhood 16

anyway.  So hopefully they will get something 17

worked out with that.  18

I do like the way the building 19

looks.  I think it would be a good transition 09:11:12PM 20

and a good buffer zone to residential and a nice 21

gateway to Hinsdale, the Georgian style of the 22
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building, but I'm listening to the neighbors 1

too.  It's a hard decision.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jerry? 3

MR. JABLONSKI:  As I said prior, it's 4

zoned residential, it's a mess right now, and I 5

will not be able to vote for a zoning amendment 6

much even less look at a site plan until we find 7

a comprehensive plan for that intersection.  8

It's R-4.9

MS. BRASELTON:  I would agree on the 09:11:52PM 10

map amendment.  I think it's clearly zoned 11

residential and that's first for me.  I'm with 12

Jerry.  13

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  I agree with the 14

citizens with all due respect but this is a good 15

compromise.  This has been an eyesore for a long 16

time and there's not people rushing in here to 17

try to use this property.  It's half residential 18

keeping with something of the spirit of the 19

zoning requirements but a nice gateway and I 09:12:22PM 20

think it looks okay as is.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I struggle with this 22

185

because the intent of our code and reverting 1

back to the R-4 and this thing has been a long 2

time but I remember when there was nothing on 3

Madison by the light; it was a nursery area.  4

Lots changed here.  5

When ManorCare increased in size, 6

Hinsdale Orthopaedics got so successful and they 7

are busting at the seams.  Then Amling's went 8

out of business.  This has been a huge eyesore.  9

And reading the traffic study, and 09:13:16PM 10

I agree, these are based on assumptions.  We 11

have no crystal ball.  Madison is a problem 12

already.  Especially once we restricted the left 13

turns, people trying to get westbound on Madison.  14

I used to go that way.  I go into Westmont if 15

I'm trying to go west to bypass that or I wait 16

until a different time.  17

I'm hopeful what they projected for 18

North but what a couple gentlemen pointed out 19

what if that's not the case, what if it becomes 09:13:48PM 20

a problem.  21

I was initially hopeful that this 22
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was going to be all residential and I like the 1

eight lot development and I think this 2

Kensington, as far as an O-2 development as a 3

special, is a fairly low impact, a good 4

neighbor, but as some people asked what would 5

happen if it reverts back to just an O-2 and 6

some of the things without even a special use 7

permit that would be permitted in an O-2 include 8

finance and insurance and real estate, security 9

commodity brokers, insurance carriers, real 09:14:30PM 10

estate offices, real estate consulting, funeral 11

homes, advertising and reproduction.  There's a 12

whole host of things that could happen there and 13

the village would be -- they would be permitted 14

uses.  Medical office, health care, physical 15

fitness, interior design, office-type spaces, 16

like we have on the corner of Madison and Ogden.  17

So that's a concern to me.  18

I'm really perplexed on this one.  19

Parts of it I like and parts of it I don't.  I'm 09:15:08PM 20

really concerned.  I live in the neighborhood.  21

I see a lot of people getting to Clarendon Hills 22
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coming up North cutting west and going down 1

Adams.  Most of the cars I see going south on 2

Adams are getting to Clarendon Hills.  I mean, 3

that's the way you go.  I used to live more east 4

of Hinsdale and I took that shortcut.  It was 5

the way I would go.  So will that increase?  6

It's a tough one.  7

I guess hearing any more 8

discussions or questions, I'd like to see if any 9

commissioners have a motion they would like to 09:15:52PM 10

propose. 11

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  How do we phrase 12

this?  I motion that we vote.  I motion that we 13

accept -- 14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  It would be a motion 15

to vote on the map amendment and tentative plat 16

of subdivision or a motion to vote against it or 17

some conditions.  18

Whatever happens here, if this gets 19

to trustee level -- well, everything is going to 09:16:30PM 20

go to trustee level.  It's a tricky one.  There's 21

competing interest.  If this was a different use 22
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other than a preschool/day-care, I think it 1

would really be a tough sell.  2

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Right.  Well -- and 3

I think we have all expressed views, we might as 4

well vote.  I motion to vote.5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  As submitted?  6

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  As submitted.7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Is there a second?8

MS. FIASCONE:  Second.  9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Anna? 09:17:04PM 10

MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.11

         MR. WILLOBEE:  No.12

         MS. CRNOVICH:  Aye.  13

         CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.  14

         MR. JABLONSKI:  No.15

MS. BRASELTON:  No.16

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye. 17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.  And 18

especially our citizens, thank you for coming 19

and expressing your thoughts.  We are just a 09:17:22PM 20

recommending body, so as this moves forward to 21

the board, they are the ones that get paid the 22
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real big bucks, please be there and talk to them 1

and express your opinions.  2

Motion to close the public hearing.3

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  I so motion.  4

MR. WILLOBEE:  Second.  5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  All in favor?6

(All aye.)  7

                  (WHICH, were all of the    8

                   proceedings had, evidence 9

                   offered or received in the 10

                   above entitled cause.) 11

12

13

14
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16

17

18

19

20

21

22
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )1

                  )

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified 3

Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 4

County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 5

certify that previous to the commencement of the 6

examination and testimony of the various 7

witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to 8

testify the truth in relation to the matters 9

pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by 10

said witnesses was reduced to writing by means 11

of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 12

typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 13

true, correct and complete transcript of my 14

shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.15

              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 16

hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 17

seal this 27th day of March, A.D. 2018.  18

19

                       _________________________20

                       KATHLEEN W. BONO,

                       C.S.R. No. 84-142321
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 11, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  22 W. First Street – John Green Realtor  – 2 New Non-Illuminated Wall Signs   

Case A-17-2018 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign application from Accurate Repro Inc., on behalf of John 
Greene Realtor, requesting approval to install 2 new non-illuminated wall signs at 22 W. First Street, 
within the Historic Downtown District in the B-2 Central Business District.  
 
At the April 4, 2018, Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) meeting, with no concerns by the HPC, 
unanimously recommended approval of the sign application, as submitted.  
 
Request and Analysis 
 
The requested 2 wall signs will utilize the 2 existing wall signage frames, approved on December 29, 
2014, for the former tenant, Village Sotheby’s Realty. The digital print will be made from a max metal 
substrate lamination material, and features a light green, dark green and white text, on a black 
background. The proposed wall sign at the front entrance (Sign 1) is 1’-1” tall and 6’-6.5” wide, for an 
area of 7.1 SF.  
 
The 2nd wall sign is proposed to be made from the same material as Sign 1, and features the same colors 
and design as Sign 1. The current sign frame is located on the side the building, facing a parking lot. The 
proposed 2nd wall sign will also utilize an existing sign frame, and is 2’-10.5” tall and 9’-9.5” wide, for an 
area of 28.15 SF. 
 
Per Section 9-106(E)(11), when more than one user occupies a zoning lot, the owner of the lot shall be 
responsible for allocating permitted signage among its tenants. Currently, there are 2 tenants at 22 W. 
First Street, allowing for up 50 SF of wall, awning, or window signage.  The proposed 2 wall signs 
combine to 35.25 SF. The current tenant, Peter Burdi Attorney law office, has a projecting sign, which 
does not count towards the same square footage signage allocation. 
 
Process 
 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application would require a meeting 
before the PC and does not require public notification. The PC maintains final authority on signage with 
no further action required by the Board of Trustees. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

 
1. Visual Compatibility:   The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which 
the sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

 
2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

 
3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity 
to which it pertains. 
 
4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic, 
detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the number of signs 
in the area. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 – Sign Application and Exhibits 
Attachment 2 -  Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Street View of 22 W. First Street 
Attachment 4 -  Birds Eye View of 22 W. First Street 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 11, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Public Hearing for Special Use Permit Application to allow for a Yoga Studio in the B-2 

Central Business District 
Inner Jasmine Yoga and Wellness – 45 S. Washington St. Suite 302 (3rd Floor)  
Case A-09-2018 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Plan Commission (PC) on March 14, 2018, scheduled a Public Hearing for the April 11, 2018, PC 
meeting to review this application. The applicant, Inner Jasmine Yoga and Wellness, is requesting 
approval for a Special Use permit in the B-2 Central Business District at 45 S. Washington Street, on the 
third floor in suite 302, for a yoga studio. The proposed tenant space on the third floor is 1,400 square 
feet in area. 
 

Request and Analysis 

Inner Jasmine Yoga and Wellness is requesting to utilize the space for a yoga studio with an emphasis on 
private teacher-training programs, and small group classes. Per the applicant, the teacher-training 
programs have a maximum enrollment of 12 participants, and special workshops with a maximum 
enrollment of 15 participants. These programs meet twice a month for 6 months or once a month for a 
year.  
 
Special workshops host a maximum of 15 participants, one evening a week for 90 minutes, and 2 hours 
on weekends. Group classes will also be offered to up to 15 participants, for 75 to 90 minute sessions. 
An example group class schedule is provided on the last page of  Attachment 1. 
 
The 3-story commercial building at 45 S. Washington Street is surrounded by the B-2 Central Business 
District parcels to the north, east, south, and west. The proposed tenant space on the 3rd floor has been 
vacant for 2 to 3 years, and was the former location for the Hinsdale Athletic Club.  
 

Process 
Within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the PC shall transmit to the 
Village Board its recommendation in the form specified by subsection 11-103(H). The failure of the PC to 
act within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of such hearing, or such further time to which the 
applicant may agree, shall be deemed a recommendation for the approval of the proposed amendment 
as submitted. 
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=11-103


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Special Use Permit and Plan Commission Application  
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Location of 45 S. Washington St. 
Attachment 3 -  Birds Eye View of 45 S. Washington St. 
Attachment 4 -  Street View of 45 S. Washington St. 
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InnerJasmine Yoga & Wellness Schedule 
 

 
The primary focus for the studio is to hold teacher-training programs, special 
workshops, mentoring programs and private sessions. Group Classes are secondary 
and linked to the mentoring program.  
 
There are two different time lengths for my Teacher-training program.  One 
program runs over a course of 6 months and meets twice a month.  The second 
program runs over the course of a year and meets once a month.  The one-year 
program and six-month program overlap one weekend a month. The Teacher-
Training programs only enroll up to twelve participants.  
 
The mentoring program works similar to private sessions, some sessions are more 
conversational while others mirror a physical practice. Most often on a one on one 
basis, at times could be up to three people. 
 
Special workshops will run one evening a week and Saturday mornings (and replace 
the group classes).  These workshops range in how long they run, and their 
maximum number of participants depending on the topic.  Most often they will be 
90 min to 120 min workshops, with a maximum number of participants at 12 to 15.  
Weekday workshops will stay within the 90 min time frame to stay within the 
meters limits. Weekend workshops will be 120 min or longer and participants will 
be guided to park in the lot across the tracks.  
 
Group classes (see attached spread sheet)  
In general group class schedules change on a quarterly or seasonal basis depending 
on the number of participants, teacher and format.  The schedule also becomes 
dependent on the teachers available to teach at available time slots.  My personal 
opinion is to amend the schedule to fit the best teachers possible.  As well as keep 
the number of different teachers to a minimum.   Group classes are being kept to a 
“small group” size, roughly 12-15 participants at most and will most will most likely 
average 8-10 participants.  
All classes will be 75 to 90 min – to stay within the metered time frame. 
 
The studio’s general intention is to make yoga accessible to all and build community.   
I would create partnerships with other local business and promote them within the 
studio.  As well as encourage special classes for each business team to.  
 
The studio would also create more in town business, as participants from classes 
would pass by other shops while walking to and from the studio. It would also 
encourage after class lunch or coffee dates in neighboring businesses.  

Attachment 1
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 11, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Public Hearing for Final Plat and concurrent Special Use Permit for a Child Daycare 

School and Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for a 1-story, 23-foot tall Child 
Daycare School in relation to Case A-44-2017  
540 W. Ogden Avenue - Kensington School –– Case A-12-2018 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale, has received an application requesting approval for a Final Plat of Subdivision, 
Special Use Permit and concurrent Exterior Appearance/Site Plan to construct a new 15,000 SF, 23-foot 
tall, one-story child daycare school, from Charles Marlas of Kensington School. The Plan Commission 
(PC) scheduled these new applications, in relation to Case A-44-2017 (Tentative Plat and Map 
Amendment), for a Public Hearing for the April 11, 2018, PC meeting.   
 
Request and Analysis 
 
The vacant subject property is currently zoned R-4 Single Family Residential and is 172,640 SF (4 acres) 
in area. The request is to subdivide the southern half of the lot, 2.26 acres in area, into 8 code compliant 
R-4 residential lots. The land use to the east and south of the proposed residential lots are also R-4 
residential. The entrance into the proposed new cul-de-sac is on Monroe Street. The permitted height of 
single family homes in the R-4 district is 3 stories/35 feet, and is taller than the planned 1-story/23 foot 
tall Kensington School at the northern half of the lot. 
 
The final plat also proposes to subdivide 1.74 acres of the northern half of the lot, facing Ogden Avenue, 
and amend the zoning from R-4 residential to an O-2 office district. On Ogden Avenue, the subject 
property would be east of an O-2 parcel at 550 W. Ogden Avenue and southwest of an O-2 parcel at 501 
W. Ogden Avenue. Per the code, the bulk and height regulations of the O-2 district encourage 
development that is architecturally consistent with smaller sites and compatible with nearby residential 
uses.  
 
The Final Plat of Subdivision and site plans include updates, for example, a relocated refuse space to the 
interior side yard and play structure locations. Engineering plans, a landscape plan and proposed 
exterior elevations for the Kensington School are also included. Per the applicant, the proposed school 
features Colonial architecture that correlates well with the existing IBLP building in the area. The 
materials, shown on the elevation plan, will be 100% red brick masonry with white wood trim and a gray 
shingled roof. Per the landscape plan, the applicant has shown additional buffering with 8’ tall 
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Arborvitae hedgerow, on the interior of its fence between the parking lot at the northeast and refuse 
location at the southwest corner of the subject property. 
 
Per the Special Use permit application, the proposed use for a child daycare center at 540 W. Ogden 
Avenue will contribute to the Village by providing programs that are underserved in the community. This 
is consistent with a comment by the PC at the March 14, 2018, PC meeting. A more detailed description 
of the proposed Kensington School is summarized in the traffic report, and states: “The site is to be 
developed with eight single-family homes on the south side of the site and an approximate 15,000 
square-foot Kensington School on the north side of the site. As proposed, the school will provide a 
full-day preschool program with a maximum enrollment of 150 students and approximately 21 to 23 
staff members that will operate between 6:30 A.M. and 6:30 P.M. According to the operator, most 
students will be dropped off between 6:30 and 8:30 A.M. and picked up between 3:30 and 6:00 P.M.  
All parents will be required to park and walk their child to and from the school. The school will have 
a total of 39 parking spaces.” 
 
It should be noted that the site plan includes a loading space along the west side of the building.  The 
applicant has stated that he does not need a loading space for deliveries and that his preference would 
be to keep the area as green space instead.  Given the specific use and needs of the proposed school, 
unique subject property shape, and relation to its surrounding neighbors, the PC and Board of Trustees 
will need to consider this request and/or include its removal as a condition of the Special Use Permit. 
 
Process 
 
Within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the PC shall transmit to the 
BOT its recommendation in the form specified by subsection 11-103(H). The failure of the PC to act 
within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of such hearing, or such further time to which the 
applicant may agree, shall be deemed a recommendation for the approval of the proposed amendment 
as submitted. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Final Plat, Special Use Permit and Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Applications  
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location  
Attachment 3 -  Birds Eye View of 540 W. Ogden Ave. 
Attachment 4 -  Parcel Aerial Map of 540 W. Ogden Ave. 
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487552, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SAID VACATION, RECORDED NOVEMBER 20, 1945 AS DOCUMENT 
SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
QUARTER OF SECTION 2, ALL IN ESTABROOK'S ADDITION TO HINSDALE, IN THE EAST HALF OF 
ADDITION TO HINSDALE, A SUBDIVISION OF THAT PART OF BLOCK 1 LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST 
THE NORTH 20 FEET OF THE WEST 296.44 FEET IN VACATION PLAT OF A. I. JORDAN'S 

PARCEL 5: 

RECORDED JULY 2, 1868 AS DOCUMENT 9709 IN DUPAGE COUNTY. ILLINOIS.
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN. ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
OF BEGINNING). A SUBDIVISION IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH LINE OF SAID JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION. FOR A DISTANCE OF 297.0 FEET TO THE POINT 
LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1, FOR A DISTANCE OF 150.0 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY PARALLEL TO THE 
SUBDIVISION. FOR A DISTANCE OF 297.0 FEET; THENCE NORTHERLY PARALLEL TO THE WEST 
CORNER OF JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF JORDAN'S 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1, FOR A DISTANCE OF 150.0 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST 
BLOCK 1, FOR A DISTANCE OF 366.45 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTHERLY 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 1; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
OF ESTABROOK'S ADDITION TO HINSDALE. DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE 
SIDE OF BLOCK 1, 246.05 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (EXCEPT THAT PART OF BLOCK 1 
FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION. THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST 
JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION, THENCE WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION. 297 
THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF BLOCK 1, 402.4 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1, 154.6 FEET; THENCE EAST AT RIGHT ANGLES. 97 FEET. 
EAST AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE WEST LINE OF BLOCK 1. 200 FEET THENCE NORTH PARALLEL 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1, 270.4 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 
FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF BLOCK 1, AFORESAID, THENCE SOUTH 
A TRACT OF LAND IN BLOCK 1 OF ESTABROOK'S ADDITION TO HINSDALE. DESCRIBED AS 

PARCEL 4: 

COUNTY. ILLINOIS 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2,1868 AS DOCUMENT 9709 IN DUPAGE 
SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH. RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
OF 297.0 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, A SUBDIVISION IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
NORTHERLY PARALLEL TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION FOR A DISTANCE 
THE NORTH LINE OF JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION FOR A DISTANCE OF 297.00 FEET; THENCE 
150.0 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF JORDAN'S SUBDIVISION; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG 
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1 FOR A DISTANCE OF 
THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1, FOR A DISTANCE OF 366.45 FEET FOR A POINT OF 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 1; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG 
PART OF BLOCK 1 OF ESTABROOK' S ADDITION TO HINSDALE DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

PARCEL 3: 

COUNTY. ILLINOIS 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JULY 2,1868 AS DOCUMENT 9709 IN DUPAGE 
SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH. RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
1, 101.1 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, A SUBDIVISION IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID BLOCK 
FEET; THENCE NORTH PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF BLOCK 1, 203.7 FEET TO THE NORTH 
PIPE; THENCE EAST AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE A DISTANCE OF 97 
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF BLOCK 1, 175 FEET TO AN IRON 
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1. 208.58 FEET FOR A POINT OF 
FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF BLOCK 1, AFORESAID; THENCE 
A TRACT OF LAND IN BLOCK 1 OF ESTABROOK' S ADDITION TO HINSDALE DESCRIBED AS 

PARCEL 2. 

RECORDED JULY 2, 1868 AS DOCUMENT 9709 IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
OF BEGINNING, A SUBDIVISION IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 
SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1, 208.58 FEET TO THE POINT 
LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1 (BEING THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF ODGEN AVENUE); THENCE 
THENCE NORTH PARALLEL TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1. 329.6 FEET TO THE NORTH 
FEET; THENCE EASTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1, 200 FEET; 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK 1 (BEING THE EAST LINE OF MONROE STREET) 270.4 
FOLLOWS. BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF BLOCK 1 AFORESAID; THENCE SOUTH 
A TRACT OF LAND IN BLOCK 1 OF ESTABROOK' S ADDITION TO HINSDALE DESCRIBED AS 

PARCEL 1: 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Owner, upon written request.

Relocation of facilities will be done by Grantees at cost of the Grantor/Lot 

 

equipment.

Business District or structures such as a pool, retention pond or mechanical 

walkways, but excludes real property physically occupied by a building, Service 

"Common Elements" include real property surfaced with interior driveways and 

ground", "parking" and "common area".  The term "common area or areas", and 

terms such as "outlots", "common elements", "open space", "open area", "common 

planned development, even though such be otherwise designated on the plat by 

an apportionment to the separately owned lots, parcels or areas within the 

property, the beneficial use and enjoyment of which is reserved in whole or as 

The term "common area or areas" is defined as a lot, parcel or area of real 

 

to time.

the "Condominium Property Act", Chapter 765 ILCS 605/2(c), as amended from time 

The term "Common Elements" shall have the meaning set forth for such term in 

 

with the proper operation and maintenance thereof.

the subdivided property shall not be altered in a manner so as to interfere 

consent of Grantees.  After installation of any such facilities, the grade of 

Utility Easement", "P.U.E" (or similar designation) without the prior written 

dotted lines (or similar designation) marked "Easement", "Utility Easement", "Public 

Grantees" facilities or in, upon or over the property within the dashed or 

property for all such purposes.  Obstructions shall not be placed over 

incident to the rights herein given, and the right to enter upon the subdivided 

obstructions from the surface and subsurface as may be reasonably required 

right to cut, trim or remove trees, bushes, roots and saplings and to clear 

improvements thereon, or on adjacent lots, and common area or areas, the 

over or under the surface of each lot and common area or areas to serve 

or private, together with the rights to install required service connections 

and the property designated on the plat for streets and alleys, whether public 

Elements", and the property designated on the plat as "common area or areas", 

designated in the Declaration of Condominium and/or on this plat as "Common 

Easement", "Public Utility Easement", "P.U.E" (or similar designation), the property 

dotted lines (or similar designation) on the plat and marked "Easement", "Utility 

across, along and upon the surface of the property shown within the dashed or 

distribution of electricity, communications, sounds and signals in, over, under, 

facilities used in connection with overhead and underground transmission and 

conduits, manholes, transformers, pedestals, equipment cabinets or other 

relocate and remove, from time to time, poles, guys, anchors, wires, cables, 

construct, operate, repair, maintain, modify, reconstruct, replace, supplement, 

their respective licensees, successors and assigns jointly and severally, to 

SBC Telephone Company, Grantees,

and

Commonwealth Edison Company

 

and communication service is hereby reserved for and granted to

An easement for serving the subdivision and other property with electric 

 

EASEMENT PROVISIONS

terms.

property, even though such areas may be designated on this plat by other 

appurtenance to the separately owned lots, parcels or areas within the 

the beneficial use and enjoyment of which is reserved in whole as an 

property, including real property surfaced with interior driveways and walkways, 

The term "Common Area or Areas" is defined as a lot, parcel or area of real 

765, Sec. 605/2(e)), as amended from time to time.

Section 605/2(e) of the "Condominium Property Act" (Illinois Compiled Statutes, Ch. 

The term "Common Elements" shall have that meaning set forth for such term in 

operation and maintenance thereof.

property shall not be altered in a manner so as to interfere with the proper 

consent of Nicor. After installation of any such facilities, the grade of the 

property identified on this plat for utility purposes without the prior written 

Obstructions shall not be placed over Nicor facilities or in, upon or over the 

herein given, and the right to enter upon the property for all such purposes. 

bushes, roots and fences, as may be reasonably required incident to the rights 

and the right to remove obstructions, including but not limited to, trees, 

and Common Area or Areas, and to serve other property, adjacent or otherwise, 

and Common Area or Areas to serve  improvements thereon, or on adjacent lots, 

to install required service connections over or under the surface of each lot 

Condominium and/or on this plat as "Common Elements", together with the right 

whether public or private, and the property designated in the Declaration of 

D.E.", "Common Area or Areas" (or similar designations), streets and alleys, 

"Public Utility Easement", "P.U.E.", "Public Utility & Drainage Easement", "P.U. & 

of the property shown on this plat marked "Easement", "Utility Easement", 

distribution of natural gas in, over, under, across, along and upon the surface 

replace and remove, facilities used in connection with the transmission and 

successors and assigns (hereinafter "Nicor") to install, operate, maintain, repair, 

COMPANY, an Illinois corporation, doing business as NICOR GAS COMPANY, its 

An easement is hereby reserved for and granted to NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS 

EASEMENT PROVISIONS

MENTIONED IN AN ORDINANCE OF VACATION. 

OTHER PUBLIC WAY AND PLACE SHOWN ON THIS PLAT, UNLESS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY 

SUCH EASEMENTS SHALL SURVIVE THE VACATION BY PROPER AUTHORITY OF ANY STREET AND 

ON SUCH LOTS. 

LOTS, BUT SUCH AERIAL SERVICE WIRE SHALL NOT PASS THROUGH PERMANENT IMPROVEMENTS 

INCLUDE THE RIGHT TO OVERHANG ALL LOTS WITH AERIAL SERVICE WIRES TO SERVE ADJACENT 

ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE T.V., WATER MAINS, SANITARY AND STORM SEWERS, AND SHALL 

THIS PLAT AS WELL AS OTHER PROPERTY, WHETHER OR NOT CONTIGUOUS THERETO, WITH GAS, 

SUCH EASEMENTS SHALL FURTHER BE FOR THE PURPOSE OF SERVING ALL AREAS SHOWN ON 

RESERVED AND GRANTED HEREBY. 

INTERFERE WITH THE EASEMENTS 

PUBLIC WAYS OR PLACES, NOR SHALL ANY OTHER USES BE MADE THEREOF WHICH WILL 

CONSTRUCTED, PLANTED, OR PLACED IN ANY SUCH EASEMENT AREAS, STREETS, OR OTHER 

CONSENT OF GRANTEES, NO BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, OR OTHER OBSTRUCTION SHALL BE 

REASONABLY REQUIRED INCIDENT TO THE RIGHT HEREIN GIVEN.  WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN 

ROOTS, STRUCTURES OR DEVICES WITHIN THE DESIGNATED EASEMENT PROPERTY AS MAY BE 

AND THE RIGHT WITHOUT LIABILITY TO CUT, TRIM, ALTER, OR REMOVE ANY VEGETATION, 

IT SHALL INCLUDE THE RIGHT TO ENTER THE SUBDIVIDED PROPERTY FOR ALL SUCH PURPOSES, 

UNDER, ACROSS, ALONG AND UPON, THE SO DESIGNATED PROPERTY. 

REMOVAL OF PUBLIC UTILITIES, DRAINAGE FACILITIES AND RELATED APPURTENANCES, IN, OVER, 

EASEMENTS SHALL BE FOR THE INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, RELOCATION, RENEWAL AND 

AREAS, STREETS, AND OTHER PUBLIC WAYS AND PLACES SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.  SAID 

COMPANY AND AMERITECH, THEIR SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, IN ALL PLATTED EASEMENT 

ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY (NICOR), COMCAST AND/OR AT &T CABLE, COMMONWEALTH EDISON 

DRAINAGE, ARE HEREBY RESERVED FOR, AND GRANTED TO THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, NORTHERN 

EASEMENTS, DESIGNATED FOR OVERHEAD, UNDERGROUND, AND SURFACE PUBLIC UTILITIES AND 

EASEMENT PROVISIONS

09-02-405-030

09-02-213-001

P.I.N.:

SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE CERTIFICATE

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

                ) SS

COUNTY OF       )

TO THE BEST OF OUR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, THE DRAINAGE OF SURFACE WATERS WILL 

NOT BE CHANGED BY THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS SUBDIVISION OR ANY PART THEREOF, OR 

THAT IF SUCH SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE WILL BE CHANGED, REASONABLE PROVISIONS HAVE 

BEEN MADE FOR COLLECTION AND DIVERSION OF SUCH SURFACE WATERS INTO PUBLIC AREAS 

OR DRAINS WHICH THE SUBDIVIDER HAS A RIGHT TO USE, AND THAT SUCH SURFACE WATERS 

WILL BE PLANNED FOR IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES 

SO AS TO REDUCE THE LIKELIHOOD OF DAMAGE TO THE ADJOINING PROPERTY BECAUSE OF 

THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SUBDIVISION.

DATED THIS 

                                                      

OWNER(S) OR DULY AUTHORIZED ATTORNEY

                                                      

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, LICENSE NO. 

LICENSE EXPIRES:

 

     DAY OF               , A.D. 20       .

NOTARY PUBLIC

                                            

 .      , A.D. 20             DAY OF     THIS 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND NOTORIAL SEAL 

ACT FOR THE USES AND PURPOSES HEREIN SET FORTH.

THAT HE/SHE/THEY DID SIGN AND DELIVER THIS INSTRUMENT AS A FREE AND VOLUNTARY 

FOREGOING CERTIFICATE, APPEARED BEFORE ME THIS DAY IN PERSON AND ACKNOWLEDGED 

PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE SAME WHOSE NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE 

 WHO IS/ARE                                                            OF 

                                , TITLE                         

 AND                                 , TITLE                         

AND STATE AFORESAID, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT 

, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE COUNTY                                     I, 

 )     COUNTY OF 

                ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

NOTARY PUBLIC CERTIFICATE

VILLAGE CLERK

ATTEST:                                            

PRESIDENT

SIGNED:                                             

 .     , A.D. 20              DAY OF     ILLINOIS, THIS 

APPROVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, 

COUNTY OF COOK AND DUPAGE  )

                ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

VILLAGE PRESIDENT CERTIFICATE

SIGNED: CHAIRMAN

                                            

 .     , A.D. 20              DAY OF     THIS 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, COOK AND DUPAGE 

COUNTY OF COOK AND DUPAGE  )

                ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

PLAN COMMISSION CERTIFICATE

SIGNED: VILLAGE ENGINEER

                                            

 .     , A.D. 20              DAY OF     THIS 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS,

APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE ENGINEER OF THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, COOK AND DUPAGE 

COUNTY OF COOK AND DUPAGE   )

                ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

VILLAGE ENGINEER CERTIFICATE

BY: VILLAGE COLLECTOR

                                            

DATED THIS      DAY OF              , A.D. 20      .

 

LAND IN THE SUBJECT PLAT. 

FORFEITED SPECIAL ASSIGNMENTS THAT HAVE BEEN APPORTIONED AGAINST THE TRACT OF 

ILLINOIS, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO DELINQUENT OR UNPAID CURRENT OR 

I,            , TREASURER FOR THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE, COOK AND DUPAGE COUNTY, 

COUNTY OF COOK AND DUPAGE   )

                ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

VILLAGE COLLECTOR CERTIFICATE

(VALID ONLY IF EMBOSSED SEAL AFFIXED)

LICENSE EXPIRES: 11-30-2018

GABRIELA PTASINSKA, I.P.L.S. No. 035-3893

                                                      

ROSEMONT, ILLINOIS.

GIVEN UNDER OUR HAND AND SEAL THIS      DAY OF               , 20       IN 

A BOUNDARY SURVEY, AS APPLICABLE TO PLATS OF SUBDIVISION. 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONFORMS TO THE CURRENT ILLINOIS MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR 

SET AT ALL LOT CORNERS.

WE FURTHER DECLARE THAT STEEL REINFORCING RODS (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) WILL BE 

IDENTIFIED BY SAID F.I.R.M. MAP.

(UNSHADED)  AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD PLAIN AS 

DECEMBER 16, 2004, IT IS OUR CONSIDERED OPINION THAT THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE X 

AGENCY (FEMA) FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM) MAP NUMBER 17043C0903H MAP REVISED 

WE FURTHER DECLARE, BASED UPON A REVIEW OF THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 

AUTHORIZED BY DIVISION 12 OF ARTICLE 11 OF THE ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL CODE AS AMENDED.

ADOPTED A CITY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND MAP AND IS EXERCISING THE SPECIAL POWERS 

WE FURTHER DECLARE THAT THE LAND IS WITHIN THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE WHICH HAS 

 

SAID PROPERTY CONTAINS 172,513 SQUARE FEET OR 3.960 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

ARE SHOWN IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN IS A CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF SAID SURVEY.  ALL DISTANCES 

SPACECO, INC., AN ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM, NUMBER 184-001157, AND THAT 

WE DECLARE THAT THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY WAS SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED BY 

COUNTY OF COOK  )

                ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

                                                   

                                                      

 

SIGNED:                                              

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

                                                   

SIGNED:                                             

DATED THIS      DAY OF               , A.D. 20       .

JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 502

HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 86

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 181    

 

SCHOOL DISTRICTS

 

WHICH EACH OF THE FOLLOWING LOTS LIE.

THIS PLAT, HAVE DETERMINED TO THE BEST OF OUR KNOWLEDGE THE SCHOOL DISTRICT IN 

THIS IS TO ALSO CERTIFY THAT AS OWNER(S) OF THE PROPERTY AS LEGALLY DESCRIBED ON 

 

ACKNOWLEDGE AND ADOPT THE SAME UNDER THE TITLE THEREON INDICATED.

AS SHOWN HEREON FOR THE USES AND PURPOSES THEREIN SET FORTH, AND DOES HEREBY 

HEREON AND THAT IT HAS CAUSED THE SAID PROPERTY TO BE SURVEYED AND SUBDIVIDED 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT KENSINGTON SCHOOL IS OWNER OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED 

COUNTY OF       )

                ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

CERTIFICATES AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

NOTARY PUBLIC

                                                      

.     , 20                   DAY OF      GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND NOTORIAL SEAL THIS 

USES AND PURPOSES HEREIN SET FORTH.

THAT HE/SHE DID SIGN AND DELIVER THIS INSTRUMENT AS A FREE AND VOLUNTARY ACT FOR THE 

TO THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATE, APPEARED BEFORE ME THIS DAY IN PERSON AND ACKNOWLEDGED 

OF SAID BANK WHO IS PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE SAME WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED 

                                                           

AND STATE AFORESAID, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE COUNTY                                    I,

)        COUNTY OF 

                   ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS  )

MORTGAGEE'S NOTARY PUBLIC

ATTEST

                                                      

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

                                                      

BY

                                                      

.     , 20                   DAY OF      DATED THIS 

STATED HEREIN.

, HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE SUBDIVISION                        AS DOCUMENT NUMBER

,     , A.D. 20               DAY OF       COUNTY, ILLINOIS ON THE            OF

PROVISIONS OF CERTAIN MORTGAGE DATED AND RECORDED IN THE RECORDER'S OFFICE 

, AS MORTGAGEE, UNDER THE                                  THE UNDERSIGNED,

)        COUNTY OF 

                   ) SS

STATE OF ILLINOIS  )

MORTGAGEE'S CERTIFICATE

BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS 60527

743 MCCLINTOCK DRIVE

KENSINGTON SCHOOL

PREPARED FOR:

Phone: (847) 696-4060  Fax: (847) 696-4065

Rosemont, Illinois 60018

9575 W. Higgins Road,  Suite 700,

JOB NO:

DATE:

FILENAME:

SHEET

OF

REVISIONS:

PURPOSES ONLY
FOR REVIEW

9587.02

03/08/2018

9587.02SUB-01

33

FINAL PLAT OF

KENSINGTON SUBDIVISION
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH. RANGE 11 EAST OF THE 

BEING A SUBDIVISION IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 

REGION ONE ENGINEER

ANTHONY J. QUIGLEY, P.E.

                                                      

WILL BE REQUIRED BY THE DEPARTMENT.

" POLICY ON PERMITS FOR ACCESS DRIVEWAYS TO STATE HIGHWAYSIN THE DEPARTMENT'S "

IN RELATION TO PLATS," AS AMENDED. A PLAN THAT MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED 

RESPECT TO ROADWAY ACCESS PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 2 OF "AN ACT TO REVISE THE LAW 

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION WITH 

I.D.O.T. CERTIFICATE

N:\Projects\9587\SURVEY\9587.02SUB-01.dgn  Sheet 3  User=jckapustiak
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T

R
O

L
 P

O
IN

T

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

O
L

E

S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
IG

H
T

F
L

A
R

E
D

 E
N

D
 S

E
C

T
IO

N

V
A

L
V

E
 A

N
D

 V
A

U
L

T
, 

V
A

L
V

E

P
IP

E
 R

E
D

U
C

E
R

P
R

E
S

S
U

R
E

 C
O

N
N

E
C

T
IO

N

F
IR

E
 H

Y
D

R
A

N
T

IN
L

E
T

C
A

T
C

H
 B

A
S

IN

S
T

O
R

M
 M

A
N

H
O

L
E

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 M

A
N

H
O

L
E

C
O

N
T

O
U

R

C
E

N
T

E
R

L
IN

E

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 L

IN
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y

F
E

N
C

E

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
 L

IN
E

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
 L

IN
E

S

G
A

S
 M

A
IN

P
IP

E
 T

R
E

N
C

H
 B

A
C

K
F

IL
L

W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
IN

 (
W

IT
H

 S
IZ

E
)

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 T

R
U

N
K

 S
E

W
E

R

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

D
R

A
IN

 T
IL

E

2

TYPICAL SECTIONS AND GENERAL NOTES

1
. 

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
D

 C
O

D
E

S

2
. 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

  
  

  
T

H
A

T
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
F

L
IC

T
 M

A
Y

 B
E

 R
E

S
O

L
V

E
D

.

  
  

  
C

O
N

F
L

IC
T

 W
IT

H
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 N
E

W
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

, 
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 N

O
T

IF
Y

 T
H

E
 O

W
N

E
R

 A
N

D
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 S
O

  
  

  
D

U
E

 T
O

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

. 
 I

F
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 L
IN

E
S

 O
F

 A
N

Y
 N

A
T

U
R

E
 A

R
E

 E
N

C
O

U
N

T
E

R
E

D
 W

H
IC

H

  
  
  
D

E
T

E
R

M
IN

IN
G

 T
H

E
 E

X
A

C
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 I

N
 T

H
E

 F
IE

L
D

 O
F

 T
H

E
S

E
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 L
IN

E
S

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

IR
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IO
N

 F
R

O
M

 D
A

M
A

G
E

  
  

  
A

R
E

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
E

 P
L

A
N

S
 A

C
C

O
R

D
IN

G
 T

O
 A

V
A

IL
A

B
L

E
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S

. 
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 F

O
R

C
. 
  
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

, 
B

O
T

H
 P

U
B

L
IC

 A
N

D
 P

R
IV

A
T

E
, 
A

N
D

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 W
IT

H
IN

 P
U

B
L

IC
 R

IG
H

T
S

-O
F

-W
A

Y

  
  
  
T

O
 S

T
A

R
T

IN
G

 A
N

Y
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

.

  
  

  
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 N

O
T

IF
Y

 A
L

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
IT

Y
 T

W
E

N
T

Y
-F

O
U

R
 (

2
4

) 
H

O
U

R
S

 P
R

IO
R

 

  
  

  
P

L
A

N
. 

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

L
L

 C
A

L
L

 J
.U

.L
.I

.E
. 

A
T

 8
0

0
-8

9
2

-0
1

2
3

  
A

N
D

 T
H

E
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

IT
Y

, 
F

O
R

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
.

  
  

  
T

H
E

S
E

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
. 

 T
H

E
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 D
O

E
S

 N
O

T
 W

A
R

R
A

N
T

 T
H

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 A
N

Y
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E

  
  
  
F

IE
L

D
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 S

H
A

L
L

 A
L

S
O

 B
E

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

L
E

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 P

R
E

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

B
. 

  
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 F

O
R

 H
A

V
IN

G
 T

H
E

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
 L

O
C

A
T

E
 T

H
E

IR
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 I
N

 T
H

E

  
  

  
IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

, 
T

H
E

 A
G

E
N

C
IE

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 M
A

Y
 B

E
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T

E
D

. 
 

  
  

  
F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

IR
 E

X
A

C
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

, 
A

N
D

 T
O

 S
A

F
E

L
Y

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 A
L

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

. 
 F

O
R

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

  
  

  
H

O
W

E
V

E
R

, 
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

'S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 T
O
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O

N
F

IR
M

 O
R

 E
S

T
A

B
L

IS
H

 T
H

E
 E

X
IS

T
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 A

L
L

 U
T

IL
IT

Y

  
  

  
L

IM
IT

S
 F

O
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
. 

 D
A

T
A

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
S

E
 A

G
E

N
C

IE
S

 H
A

S
 B

E
E

N
 I

N
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

D
 I

N
T

O
 T

H
E

 P
L

A
N

S
. 

 I
T

 I
S

,

A
. 
  
 T

H
E

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
 H

A
V

E
 B

E
E

N
 C

O
N

T
A

C
T

E
D

 I
N

 R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 T

O
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
 T

H
E

Y
 O

W
N

 A
N

D
 O

P
E

R
A

T
E

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E

 3
. 

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

T
IO

N

2
2

. 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 E
X

C
A

V
A

T
IO

N
/U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 N
O

T
E

S

2
4
. 
U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 N
O

T
E

S

  
  

  
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
.

  
  

  
N

O
T

E
D

, 
S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 N
O

T
IF

IE
D

 I
N

 W
R

IT
IN

G
 B

Y
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 T
E

N
 (

1
0

) 
D

A
Y

S
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 T

H
E

 S
T

A
R

T
 O

F
 A

N
Y

 S
U

C
H

  
  

  
M

O
N

T
H

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 S
T

A
R

T
 O

F
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 I
N

 I
T

S
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 A
R

E
A

S
. 

 A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
IE

S
, 

U
N

L
E

S
S

 O
T

H
E

R
W

IS
E

  
  
  
T

H
E

 S
T

A
R

T
 O

F
 A

N
Y

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

O
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

 O
T

H
E

R
S

. 
 A

T
&

T
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 C
O

N
T

A
C

T
E

D
 O

N
E

C
. 
  
 T

H
E

 O
W

N
E

R
 A

N
D

 T
H

E
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 N

O
T

IF
IE

D
 I

N
 W

R
IT

IN
G

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 A

T
 L

E
A

S
T

 4
8
 H

O
U

R
S

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

  
  
  
D

IR
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 O

W
N

E
R

.

  
  
  
W

IT
H

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 W
O

R
K

, 
A

N
D

 S
H

A
L

L
 P

R
E

P
A

R
E

 R
E

V
IS

E
D

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

(S
) 

IN
 C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

 T
H

E
R

E
W

IT
H

 A
S

  
  
  
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 T

O
 A

D
JU

S
T

 T
H

E
 O

R
D

E
R

 O
F

 I
T

S
 W

O
R

K
 F

R
O

M
 T

IM
E

 T
O

 T
IM

E
, 
T

O
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

T
E

 S
A

M
E

  
  
  
S

H
O

U
L

D
 R

E
F

L
E

C
T

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 S

E
Q

U
E

N
C

IN
G

 W
H

IC
H

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
T

E
S

 W
IT

H
 A

L
L

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 W
O

R
K

. 
 T

H
E

  
  
  
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 D

O
 N

O
T

 I
N

T
E

R
F

E
R

E
 W

IT
H

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 W
O

R
K

. 
 T

H
E

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

  
  
  
P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 T

H
E

 S
T

A
R

T
 O

F
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

. 
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 T

A
K

E
 A

P
P

R
O

P
R

IA
T

E
 M

E
A

S
U

R
E

S
 T

O
 E

N
S

U
R

E
 T

H
A

T

B
. 

  
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 I
S

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

L
E

 F
O

R
 V

E
R

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 N

A
T

U
R

E
 A

N
D

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 O
F

 A
L

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 R
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 W

O
R

K

  
  
  
N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

 T
O

 S
E

C
U

R
E

 T
H

E
S

E
 P

E
R

M
IT

S
.

  
  

  
U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
. 

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
, 

H
O

W
E

V
E

R
, 

S
H

A
L

L
 F

U
R

N
IS

H
 A

L
L

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 B

O
N

D
S

 A
N

D
 E

V
ID

E
N

C
E

 O
F

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

A
. 
  
 O

W
N

E
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 O

B
T

A
IN

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
 A

N
D

 P
E

R
M

IT
S

 N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
 T

O
 F

A
C

IL
IT

A
T

E
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 O
F

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D

  
  
  
  
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 
T

H
E

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 O
F

 T
H

E
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 F

IN
A

L
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
C

L
U

S
IV

E
.

  
  

  
  

 D
O

U
B

T
 O

R
 Q

U
E

S
T

IO
N

S
 A

R
IS

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 R

E
S

P
E

C
T

 T
O

 T
H

E
 T

R
U

E
 M

E
A

N
IN

G
 O

F
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
S

 O
R

  
  
  
  
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 W
IL

L
 B

E
 C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

E
D

 T
O

 H
A

V
E

 P
R

O
C

E
E

D
E

D
 A

T
 H

IS
 O

W
N

 R
IS

K
 A

N
D

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
. 
 I

N
 T

H
E

 E
V

E
N

T
 O

F
 A

N
Y

  
  
  
  
 W

IT
H

 A
N

Y
 P

A
R

T
 O

F
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

 A
F

F
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

 O
M

IS
S

IO
N

S
 O

R
 D

IS
C

R
E

P
A

N
C

IE
S

. 
 F

A
IL

IN
G

 T
O

 S
E

C
U

R
E

 S
U

C
H

 I
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

,

  
  

  
  

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

, 
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 S

E
C

U
R

E
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
 I

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
E

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 P

R
O

C
E

E
D

IN
G

  
  

  
  

 F
U

L
L

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

IL
IT

Y
. 

 I
N

 T
H

E
 E

V
E

N
T

 O
F

 D
IS

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
 B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

S
, 

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

/O
R

  
  
  
  
 M

U
S

T
 I

M
M

E
D

IA
T

E
L

Y
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 S

A
M

E
 T

O
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 B
E

F
O

R
E

 D
O

IN
G

 A
N

Y
 W

O
R

K
, 
O

T
H

E
R

W
IS

E
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 A
S

S
U

M
E

S

  
  
  
  
 L

IN
E

 A
N

D
 G

R
A

D
E

 S
T

A
K

E
S

. 
 I

F
 T

H
E

R
E

 A
R

E
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 W

IT
H

 W
H

A
T

 I
S

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
S

, 
H

E

  
  

  
  

 W
O

R
K

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 A
C

T
U

A
L

 C
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R=70
2.5

8

W I=701.89,12"RCP

N I=702.64,12"RCP

R=707.14

S I=703.09,12"RCP

R=706.64

N,E,W T/PIPE=703.80

R=709.30

E,W I=685.64,12"CLAY

R=709.54

R=709.35

R=709.67

E,W
 I=

699.4
6,10

"CLAY

N,N
W 

I=699.6
6,8

"CLAY

R=70
9.8

6

R=703.01

I=695.8
4,2

4"R
CP

W/1" RESTRICTOR

N I=696.75,12"RCP 

S I=696.75,12"RCP

W I=696.75,10"RCP

R=700.60

W I=696.65, 18"RCP

S I=696.65,15"RCP

N I=696.65,12"RCP

SE I=697.85,12"RCP

R=702.85

E,W I=697.02,15"RCP

R=701.02

PENDING"

APPLICATION 

"ZONING 

TIME OF SURVEY

AND PIN FLAGS AT 

YELLOW PAINT MARKS 

LEFT"

"STOP/NO 

10' M
AST E-W

GUY WIRE ANCHOR

6
 

W
IR

E
S

SIGN
STREET 

MONROE" 

"OGDEN/ 

FL=706.28
EP=706.32

TC=706.80

694.5

695.4

695.5

695.6

695.6

695.7

695.8696

696.5

696.6

696.6

697

697

697.2

698

698.1

698.7

699

6
9
9

699.1

699.2

699.3

699.3

699.4

699.7

699.7

700

700

700.2

700.5

700.6

700.6

700.9

701.0

701

701

7
0
1

FL=701.12
EP=701.19

FL=701.37

701.4

FL=701.39
EP=701.46

701.5

701.5

EP=701.47

701.5

701.6

TC=701.59

FL=701.63

701.69

EP=701.73

TC=701.85

TC=701.88

701.9

FL=701.90

701.9

EP=701.94

EP=701.96

702

70
2

702

7
0
2

FL=702.00

FL=702.06

EP=702.07
FL=702.07

EP=702.08

TC=702.10

FL=702.15
EP=702.27

702.30

702.3

702.3
3

TC=702.40

TC=702.45

702.50

FL=70
2.5

1

TC=702.52

TC=702.53

EP=70
2.5

6

TC=702.59

702.6
0

702.7

702.7

702.9

702.9

702.9

702.9

TC=70
2.9

4

703.0

703

703

703
7
0
3

703.0
8

FL=703.15
EP=703.20

703.4

703.4
5

TC=703.50

703.5

703.6

703.7

FL=703.82
EP=703.92

704

704

704
7
0
4

704.3

FL=704.27
EP=704.36

TC=704.38

704.4

704.53

TC=704.73

704.8

FL=704.86
EP=704.91

705

705

705
7
0
5

FL=705.21

FL=705.21
EP=705.27

EP=705.32

705.3

EP=705.35
TC=70

5.3
5

EP=70
5.3

9
TC=705.41

TC=705.41

705.56

705.6

705.6

705.7

TC=705.75

TC=705.77

TC=70
5.85

FL=705.95

706

706 706
7
0
6

TC=706.01

EP=706.02

EP=706.16

706.2

706.2

EP=70
6.21 EP=70

6.25

FL=706.33

706.4

706.4

EP=706.46

TC=706.49

TC=70
6.62

706.66

TC=70
6.72

706.7

TC=706.84

707

707

707

7
0
7

FL=707.01

707.0

EP=707.04

707.1

707.1

707.2

707.2

FL=707.35
EP=707.41

TC=707.48

707.6

707.6

707.7

FL=707.72
EP=707.75

707.80

EP=707.85

TC=707.86

TC=707.88

EP=70
7.91

708.0

708

708

708

7
0
8

TC=708.03

FL=708.08

EP=708.08

TC=708.09

EP=708.14
TC=708.22

EP=70
8.30

TC=708.34

TC=70
8.3

4

708.4

FL=708.38

FL=708.40

EP=708.41

EP=708.43

708.5

TC=708.58

708.6

FL=708.62

708.65

708.7

EP=708.68

708.7

TC=70
8.77

TC=708.89

EP=708.92

708.9

FL=708.92

TC=708.93

TC=708.93

EP=708.96

709.0

FL=708.98

TC=708.98

709

70
9

709

709

709.0

709.0

FL=709.03

TC=709.06

FL=709.09
EP=709.13

709.14

EP=709.15

EP=709.16

TC=709.16

TC=709.16

EP=709.16

EP=70
9.18

709.2

EP=70
9.19 EP=70

9.2
5

709.3

TC=70
9.3

0

709.3

EP=709.33

709.3

709.3

709.4

709.4

EP=709.39

EP=709.42

TC=70
9.4

2 FL=709.43

TC=709.44

709.44

709.5
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EP=709.51

TC=709.53

EP=709.53
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TC=70
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709.7
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EP=709.97

710.0

710

710

710

7
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EP=711.46
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711.8

711.9

712

712

712.0

712.1

712.6

712.7

712.7

712.8

713
713.2

SE I=695.91,8"DROP PIPE

E,W I=686.39,12"CLAY

R=707.29
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W
IR

E
S

PER 
VERIZ

ON ATLAS

4" P
ER NIC

OR ATLAS

2
"
 P

E
R

 N
IC

O
R

 A
T

L
A

S

2
"
 P

E
R

 N
IC

O
R

 A
T

L
A

S

B
E

N
D
 
P
E
R
 
A
T
L
A
S

P
E
R
 
C
O

M
E

D
 
A
T
L
A
S

12" P
ER ATLAS

P
E
R
 
A
T
L
A
S

C
O
N
N
E
C
T
IO

N
 

8"PRIVATE PER ATLAS

10
"P

R
IVA

T
E
 
P
E
R
 

A
T
LA

S

QUAZITE BOX

1 WIRE

CONC PLANTER

CONC PLANTER

SITE BENCHMARK #2

8' WOODEN FENCE

8' WOODEN FENCE

5
 W

IR
E

S
6
 W

IR
E

S
6
 

W
IR

E
S

BRICK WALL W/ 
COLUMNS

OUTSIDE EDGE OF 

TIMBER PLANTERS

FENCE POST

FENCE POST

FENCE POST

FENCE POST

NO MAST

1 
W
IR

E

6' WOOD FENCE

LIGHT POLE BASE

"NO PARKING"

PARKING"

25 - NO 

"SPEED LIMIT 

1 W
IR

E

RR TIE WALL

PARKING"

"NO 

PARKING"

"NO 

5' CHAIN LINK FENCE

5' CHAIN LINK FENCE

PARKING"

"NO 

PARKING"

"NO 

NO MAST

1 WIRE

GUY WIRE ANCHOR

GUY WIRE ANCHOR

O
U
T
 
O
F
 

G
R
O
U
N
D

P
V
C
 
S
T
IC

K
IN

G
 

OUT OF GROUND

PVC STICKING 

"HANDICAP PARKING"

"CUSTOMER PARKING"

"CUSTOMER PARKING"

10' MAST E-W

10' M
AST E-W

10' MAST E-W

N I=697.50,+/-15"RCP

E I=697.70,+/-15"RCP

R=712.40

N,S I=697.31,15"RCP

SE I=697.91,+/-8"RCP

R=708.21

N,S T/PIPE=699.22

R=704.42

T/DEBRIS=702.1

FULL OF DEBRIS

R=703.37

T/DEBRIS=703.5

FULL OF DEBRIS

R=703.50

N I=697.08,18"RCP

S I=697.13,15"RCP

SE I=697.33,12"RCP

NW I=697.58,12"RCP

R=703.23

SE,W I=697.90,12"RCP

R=701.55E I=699.50,12"+/-CLAY

R=701.70

NW I=698.64,12"RCP

R=703.06

SW I=702.88,8"RCP

R=705.42

NW,SE I=698.98,8"CLAY

R=707.48

E,W I=699.19,8"CLAY

N I=699.44,8"CLAY

R=705.64

N I=700.98,12"CLAY

R=706.38

SITE BENCHMARK #3

NO VISIBLE PIPE NE

NW I=699.00,12"RCP

R=703.07

NO VISIBLE PIPE S,SW

NE I=701.63,8"RCP

R=706.23

TRANS PAD

NO VISIBLE PIPE E

S,SE I=699.28,10"RCP

NW I=699.28,8"CLAY

R=706.78

NO VISIBLE PIPE SE

NW I=704.87,6"PVC

R=707.67

MAST

NO 

VAULT

TELEPHONE 

BASE

LIGHT POLE 

SITE BENCHMARK #1

L
IG

H
T
 
P
O
L
E
 
B
A
S
E

BOX

ELEC 

RETAINING WALL

WOOD 

E,W I=697.42,15"RCP

N I=698.17,10"RCP

S I=702.87,8"DIP

R=706.22

B/WALL=710.0

T/WALL=712.0

B/WALL=709.2

T/WALL=711.8
RETAINING WALL

BLOCK 

B/WALL=708.3

T/WALL=709.8

B/WALL=706.1

T/WALL=708.6

B/WALL=705.8

T/WALL=708.6

=707.2

B/WALL

=708.2

T/WALL
B/WALL=706.6

T/WALL=710.7

B/WALL=707.3

T/WALL=707.6

B/WALL=709.5

T/WALL=711.2

 RETAINING WALL

BLOCK

B
/

W
A
L
L
=7
0
8
.3

T
/

W
A
L
L
=7
0
8
.6

T/WALL=709.3

RETAINING WALL

BOULDER
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e
d
 o

n
 p

u
m

p
 o

u
tl

e
t 

h
o
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
is

c
h
a
r
g
e
 o

f
f
 s

it
e
 o

r
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o
m

p
li

s
h
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

D
u

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l:

  
W

h
e
n

 t
e
m

p
o

r
a
r
y

 d
u

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

m
e
a
s
u

r
e
s
 a

r
e
 u

s
e
d

, 
r
e
p

e
ti

ti
v

e
 t

r
e
a
tm

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

p
p

li
e
d

 a
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 

S
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
. 
  

e
r
o
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

e
d
im

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r
 p

r
o
te

c
ti

v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 i

d
e
n
ti

f
ie

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 S

E
S

C
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 S

ta
n
d
a
r
d
 

f
o
ll

o
w

in
g
 i

s
 a

 d
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o
n
 o

f
 p

r
o
c
e
d
u
r
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

, 
in

 g
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 e

f
f
e
c
ti

v
e
 o

p
e
r
a
ti

n
g
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
, 

e
f
f
e
c
ti

v
e
n
e
s
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

r
o
m

p
t 

a
n
d
 e

f
f
e
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
p
a
ir

 a
n
d
/o

r
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f
 d

e
f
ic

ie
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

m
e
a
s
u
r
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
te

d
 i

n
to

 t
h
is

 p
r
o
je

c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

e
r
f
o
r
m

e
d
 a

s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
u
r
e
 t

h
e
ir

 c
o
n
ti

n
u
e
d
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T
E

N
A

N
C

E

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

P
E

R
M

IT
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: 
  
 I

L
R

1
0

D
A

T
E

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
 N

U
M

B
E

R

T
H

E
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
IT

E
 I

D
E

N
T

IF
IE

D
 A

S
 P

A
R

T
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

.

T
H

A
T

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
E

S
 T

H
E

 S
T

O
R

M
 W

A
T

E
R

 D
IS

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
 I

N
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 A
C

T
IV

IT
Y

 F
R

O
M

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 P
O

L
L

U
T

A
N

T
 D

IS
C

H
A

R
G

E
 E

L
IM

IN
A

T
IO

N
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 (

N
P

D
E

S
) 

P
E

R
M

IT
 (

IL
R

1
0

)

I 
C

E
R

T
IF

Y
 U

N
D

E
R

 P
E

N
A

L
T

Y
 O

F
 L

A
W

 T
H

A
T

 I
 U

N
D

E
R

S
T

A
N

D
 T

H
E

 T
E

R
M

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 O
F

 T
H

E

-
  

 o
th

e
r
 m

e
a
s
u

r
e
s

-
  

 i
n

f
i
l
t
r
a
t
i
o

n
 t

r
e
n

c
h

e
s

-
  
 v

e
g
e
ta

te
d
 s

w
a
le

s

-
  

 r
e
t
e
n

t
i
o

n
 b

a
s
i
n

s

-
  

 d
e
te

n
ti

o
n

 b
a
s
in

s
 (

w
e
t 

b
a
s
in

s
, 

d
r
y

 b
a
s
in

s
, 

e
tc

.)

m
e
a
s
u

r
e
s
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
:

in
 I

E
P

A
's

 I
ll

in
o

is
 U

r
b

a
n

 M
a
n

u
a
l,

 F
e
d

e
r
a
l,

 S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
/o

r
 L

o
c
a
l 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 s

to
r
m

 w
a
te

r
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

1
)
  
T

h
e
 p

r
a
c
ti

c
e
s
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

e
r
e
 d

e
te

r
m

in
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 

T
h

e
 i

n
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

 o
f
 t

h
e
s
e
 d

e
v

ic
e
s
 m

a
y

 b
e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 S

e
c
ti

o
n

 4
0

4
 o

f
 t

h
e
 C

le
a
n

 W
a
te

r
 A

c
t.

th
e
 p

o
ll

u
ta

n
ts

 i
n

 s
to

r
m

 w
a
te

r
 d

is
c
h

a
r
g

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
il

l 
o

c
c
u

r
 a

f
te

r
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
p

e
r
a
ti

o
n

s
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 

P
r
o

v
id

e
d

 b
e
lo

w
 i

s
 a

 d
e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f
 m

e
a
s
u

r
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 i

n
s
ta

ll
e
d

 d
u

r
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 p
r
o

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

D
. 

S
to

rm
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

p
r
e
s
e
n

t
 p

r
i
o

r
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i

n
i
t
i
a
t
i
o

n
 o

f
 c

o
n

s
t
r
u

c
t
i
o

n
 a

c
t
i
v

i
t
i
e
s
)
. 

a
r
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

r
o
te

c
te

d
 (

e
.g

.,
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f
 h

y
d
r
o
lo

g
ic

 c
o
n
d
it

io
n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 h

y
d
r
o
p
e
r
io

d
 a

n
d
 h

y
d
r
o
d
y
n
a
m

ic
s
 

f
lo

w
 f

r
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

r
e
 t

o
 a

 w
a
te

r
c
o
u
r
s
e
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 n

a
tu

r
a
l,

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l,

 a
n
d
 b

io
lo

g
ic

a
l 

c
h
a
r
a
c
te

r
is

ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
c
ti

o
n
s
 

a
t 

d
is

c
h

a
r
g

e
 l

o
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 l

e
n

g
th

 o
f
 a

n
y

 o
u

tf
a
ll

 c
h

a
n

n
e
l 

a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y

 t
o

 p
r
o

v
id

e
 a

 n
o

n
-
e
r
o

s
iv

e
 v

e
lo

c
it

y
 

2
)
 V

e
lo

c
it

y
 d

is
s
ip

a
ti

o
n

 d
e
v

ic
e
s
, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 r

ip
-
r
a
p

 a
p

r
o

n
s
 a

t 
f
la

r
e
d

 e
n

d
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

r
 l

e
v

e
l 

s
p
r
e
a
d
e
r
s
, 

s
h
a
ll

 b
e
 p

la
c
e
d

n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 V

e
h
ic

le
s
 h

a
u
li

n
g
 e

r
o
d
ib

le
 m

a
te

r
ia

l 
to

 a
n
d
 f

r
o
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 s

it
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
v
e
r
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 t
a
r
p
.

to
p
 d

r
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

ta
b
il

iz
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it

io
n
a
l 

s
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
p
 l

a
y
e
r
s
 o

f
 s

to
n
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
d
im

e
n
t,

 a
s
 

s
w

e
p
t 

a
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 s

e
d
im

e
n
t,

 d
ir

t,
 o

r
 s

to
n
e
 t

r
a
c
k
e
d
 f

r
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
. 
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 m

a
y
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
(
s
)
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
s
ta

ll
e
d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 t

r
a
c
k
in

g
 o

f
 s

e
d
im

e
n
ts

. 
 S

tr
e
e
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

T
h

e
 s

it
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v

e
 o

n
e
 o

r
 m

o
r
e
 s

ta
b

il
iz

e
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 e
n

tr
a
n

c
e
s
 i

n
 c

o
n

f
o

r
m

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

la
n

 d
e
ta

il
s
. 

 S
ta

b
il

iz
e
d

 

M
. 
O

f
f
-
S

it
e
 V

e
h
ic

le
 T

r
a
c
k
in

g

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

m
e
a
s
u

r
e
s
 m

a
y

 b
e
 i

n
s
ta

ll
e
d

 a
t 

th
e
 o

u
tl

e
t 

a
r
e
a
 a

t 
th

e
 d

is
c
r
e
ti

o
n

 o
f
 t

h
e
 P

r
im

a
r
y

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 

o
r
 E

n
g

in
e
e
r
. 

 

S
ta

b
il

iz
e
d
 c

o
n
v
e
y
a
n
c
e
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

n
s
ta

ll
e
d
 t

o
 d

ir
e
c
t 

w
a
te

r
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ir

e
d
 l

o
c
a
ti

o
n
 a

s
 a

p
p
li

c
a
b
le

. 
 

f
il

te
r
 b

a
g

, 
o

r
 b

o
th

. 
 A

d
e
q

u
a
te

 e
r
o

s
io

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d

 d
u

r
in

g
 d

e
-
w

a
te

r
in

g
 o

p
e
r
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y

. 
 

o
p
e
r
a
ti

o
n
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

is
c
h
a
r
g
e
d
 t

o
 a

 s
ta

b
il

iz
e
d
 a

r
e
a
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
is

ts
 o

f
 a

n
 e

n
e
r
g
y
 d

is
s
ip

a
ti

n
g
 d

e
v
ic

e
 (

e
.g

.,
 s

to
n
e
)
, 
s
e
d
im

e
n
t 

in
 a

 s
ta

b
il

iz
e
d

 s
u

m
p

 p
it

 o
r
 f

lo
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

u
r
f
a
c
e
 o

f
 t

h
e
 w

a
te

r
 i

n
 o

r
d

e
r
 t

o
 l

im
it

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f
 s

e
d

im
e
n

t 
in

ta
k

e
. 

 P
u

m
p

in
g

 

a
r
e
a
s
, 
W

a
te

r
s
 o

f
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

, 
o
r
 t

o
 a

 s
to

r
m

 s
e
w

e
r
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

in
 a

c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 L

o
c
a
l 

p
e
r
m

it
s
)
. 
 I

n
le

t 
h
o
s
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 

D
u
r
in

g
 d

e
-
w

a
te

r
in

g
/p

u
m

p
in

g
 o

p
e
r
a
ti

o
n
s
, 
o
n
ly

 u
n
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 w

a
te

r
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

ll
o
w

e
d
 t

o
 d

is
c
h
a
r
g
e
 t

o
 p

r
o
te

c
te

d
 n

a
tu

r
a
l 

L
. 
D

e
-
W

a
te

r
in

g
 O

p
e
r
a
ti

o
n
s
 

  
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e
 d

is
c
h

a
r
g

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

to
r
m

 s
e
w

e
r
 o

r
 w

a
te

r
b

o
d

y
.

  
 E

x
c
e
s
s
 m

a
te

r
ia

ls
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
p

o
s
e
d

 o
f
 a

c
c
o

r
d

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

u
f
a
c
tu

r
e
r
's

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

r
 S

ta
te

 a
n

d
 L

o
c
a
l 

r
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
, 

-
  

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 f
o

ll
o

w
 t

h
e
 m

a
n

u
f
a
c
tu

r
e
r
's

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r
 p

r
o

p
e
r
 u

s
e
, 

s
to

r
a
g

e
, 

a
n

d
 d

is
p

o
s
a
l 

o
f
 m

a
te

r
ia

ls
. 

 

-
  

P
e
tr

o
le

u
m

 p
r
o

d
u

c
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

to
r
e
d

 i
n

 t
ig

h
tl

y
 s

e
a
le

d
 a

n
d

 c
le

a
r
ly

 l
a
b

e
le

d
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
r
s
.

  
 c

h
a
n
c
e
 o

f
 l

e
a
k
a
g
e
.

-
  
O

n
-
s
it

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
n
it

o
r
e
d
 f

o
r
 l

e
a
k
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g
u
la

r
 p

r
e
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

th
e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g
 m

in
im

u
m

 p
r
a
c
ti

c
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
ll

o
w

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f
 s

p
il

ls
: 

 

I
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

o
o

d
 h

o
u

s
e
k

e
e
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

r
a
c
ti

c
e
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

r
e
v

io
u

s
 s

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 o

f
 t

h
e
s
e
 N

o
te

s
, 

p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l 

p
r
o
te

c
ti

v
e
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 m

in
im

iz
e
 i

n
ju

r
y
 f

r
o
m

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it

h
 a

 h
a
z
a
r
d
o
u
s
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
. 
 

o
r
 L

o
c
a
l 

g
o
v
e
r
n
m

e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
y
, 
a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
. 
 W

h
e
n
 c

le
a
n
in

g
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 m
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c
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b
e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

s
-
n
e
e
d
e
d
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 p

r
o
te

c
t 

w
a
te

r
 q

u
a
li

ty
. 
 P

e
r
im

e
te

r
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 

B
. 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 

I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

T
h

e
 i

n
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

 o
f
 t

h
e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 d
e
v

ic
e
s
 m

a
y

 b
e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 S

e
c
ti

o
n

 4
0

4
 o

f
 t

h
e
 C

le
a
n

 W
a
te

r
 A

c
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 11, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Hinsdale Meadows  – Planned Development at S.E. corner of 55th St. and County Line Rd. 

Major Adjustment Application to Detailed Plan for use of Hardie Siding in lieu of Stucco 
and Elevation Changes  - Case A-04-2018 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

This Major Adjustment to a Planned Development application requests a change in the building 
materials at Hinsdale Meadows, by using Hardie siding and stone for the home façade, in lieu of the 
approved stucco and brick. Per the applicant, Hinsdale Meadows, it is their experience, along with 
feedback from potential customers and prominent local real estate brokers, that Hardie siding will be an 
attractive feature for their customers. The request to change the materials for Hardie siding has also 
triggered the need for elevation changes, as stated by the applicant to the Board of Trustees on March 
6, 2018.  
 
Per the applicant, Hardie siding is manufactured by the James Hardie company, and offers a 10-year 
manufacturer’s warranty on the material. The applicant states that Hardie siding requires minimal 
repairs, and the material can last throughout the life of the home. The use of this long-lasting material is 
consistent with the underlying premise for an age-targeted, low-maintenance Hinsdale Meadows 
community. The applicant has submitted a side-by-side comparison between the building material and 
elevation changes, and a new third “Nantucket” elevation style for the single family Torrington model 
for review. 
 
Per the applicant’s cover letter, dated April 3, 2018, the request also includes the use of stone and 
Hardie siding for both the single family and duplex villas. The request to the Board of Trustees on March 
20, 2018, only pertained to single family homes. The applicant believes using consistent masonry 
style/materials for both single family and duplex villas will be more attractive. Two additional revision 
requests since the March 20, 2018, Board of Trustees, meeting includes: (1) corrected Ridgefield Single 
elevation to include the new dormer over the garage and, (2) corrected the garage window detail on the 
New Haven Shingle elevation. The applicant will present material samples to the Plan Commission (PC) 
on April 11, 2018. 

 
Request and Analysis 

On December 11, 2017, the Board of Trustees approved Ordinance O2017-52, approving a Detailed Plan 
for a 64-unit residential Planned Development, at the southeast corner of 55th Street and County Line 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Road for Hinsdale Meadows, LLC. Per the Detailed Plan, the proposed exterior building materials 
included primarily stucco and brick. 
 
On March 20, 2018, the Village Board referred this major adjustment request to the PC for further 
hearing and review. The Village Board felt the elevation changes by using Hardie siding was substantial 
enough for review by the PC. 
 
Process 
 
Pursuant to Section 11-606, the Chairman of the PC shall at the public meeting on the application for 
exterior appearance review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, material and 
nonrepetitive comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the public 
meeting, the PC shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the form specified in 
subsection 11-103(H) of this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of the site plan based 
on the standards set forth in subsection F1 of this Section 11-604. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 -  Hinsdale Meadows Major Adjustment Cover Letter (dated April 3, 2018) – 

Materials/Elevation Side-by-Side Comparisons 
Attachment 2 -  Approved Ordinance for Detailed Plan for Planned Development (dated 12.11.17) 
Attachment 3 -  Approved Exterior Elevation Materials spreadsheet (per Ordinance O2017-52) 
Attachment 4 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
 



2550 Waukegan Road, Suite 220, Glenview, IL 60025 | 847-724-8200 ph 847-724-8185 fax | erjames.com 

Hinsdale Meadows, LLC 

April 3, 2018 

 

Plan Commission, Village of Hinsdale 

Kathleen Gargano, Village Manager 

Robert McGinnis, Director of Community Development 

Chan Yu, Village Planner 

 

Re: Hinsdale Meadows – Major Adjustment to Planned Development 

 

As you know, the Village Board of Trustees has reviewed our application for a major adjustment to a 

planned development, and has referred the matter back to the Plan Commission.  The requested 

adjustments include changing the building materials to allow the use Hardie siding in lieu of stucco and 

stone in lieu of brick, along with certain other minor elevation revisions as outlined in our submittal, and 

the requested addition of an additional elevation for two of the approved single family model types.  We 

have prepared the attached side by side comparison of the updated elevations versus the original 

approved elevations, and believe the updated elevations will be very appealing for the residents and the 

Village as a whole. 

 

As outlined in our application to the Board, the request for the change is based on additional feedback 

and several requests for this architectural style from potential customers and prominent local real 

estate brokers.  Additionally, since the time of our original submittal to the Village Board, we have also 

decided to request the use of stone for both the single family and the duplex villas.  Our original 

application for the major change reflected the use of brick on the duplex villas, but we believe the 

consistent masonry style for both product types will be more attractive.    

 

In addition to the use of stone for the duplex villas, two other minor revisions to our original application 

for the major change include the following: 

1. Corrected the Ridgefield Shingle elevation to include the new dormer over the garage 

2. Corrected the garage window detail on the New Haven Shingle elevation 

 

We look forward to presenting the updated elevations and material samples at the Plan Commission 

public meeting on April 11th, and thank you for your ongoing assistance in the consideration of Hinsdale 

Meadows. 

 

 

Sincerely yours, 

 
Jerry James 

 

CC: Edward R. James 

 Michael Balas  
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Attachment 4: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 11, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  830 N. Madison Street  – Salt Creek Club   

Major Adjustment Application for Site Plan Changes  - Case A-10-2018 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

In 2017, staff performed a final inspection of the renovation project at the Salt Creek Club at 830 N. 
Madison Street, and found it was not consistent with the Major Adjustment site plan approved on 
January 19, 2016. To this end, the applicant is requesting a Major Adjustment to site plan approval to 
reflect the removal, relocation, and additions to the subject property, as summarized: 

1. Eliminated proposed generator and associated arborvitae (east elevation).  
2. Eliminated sand volleyball court and concrete basketball court (north elevation). 
3. Reduced number of aborvitae from 21 to 11 (north elevation). 
4. Failed to pave the garbage dumpster area at northeast corner of site (still in gravel).    
5. Relocated paver patio with canopy (west elevation). 
6. Added additional parking space between tennis pavilion and paddle court 1 and one additional 

parking space near access road to pavilion (the aforementioned “additional” parking spaces are 
relocated from other areas, there is no net increase or decrease in parking (108 spaces)). 

7. Widened asphalt driveway (east elevation). 
8. Added new storage shed (12’ W x 20’ L) for pool supplies (west elevation). 
9. Used permeable pavers in-lieu of asphalt for parking lot (north elevation). 
10. Installed 6’ cedar fence screening along the east side of parking lot.       

 
Request and Analysis 

On August 15, 2006, the Village Board approved a planned development, and concurrent special use 
permit, exterior appearance and site plan for the Salt Creek Club at 830 N. Madison Street (Attachment 
2). On March 17, 2015, the Village Board approved a major adjustment for the Salt Creek Club to 
partially demolish and construct a new clubhouse (Ordinance O2015-10). On January 19, 2016, the 
Village Board approved a major adjustment to the clubhouse for the removal of: existing stone and set 
of windows, and the addition of: HVAC vents, a sliding patio door system, and the inclusion of a back-up 
generator.    
 
On March 20, 2018, the Village Board referred this major adjustment request to the Plan Commission 
(PC) for further hearing and review. The Village Board felt the number of requested changes to the site 
plan was substantial enough for review by the PC. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Process 
 
Pursuant to Section 11-604, the Chairman of the PC shall at the public meeting on the application for 
site plan review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, material and nonrepetitive 
comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the public meeting, the PC shall 
transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the form specified in subsection 11-103(H) of 
this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of the site plan based on the standards set 
forth in subsection F1 of this Section 11-604. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Major Adjustment Application and Exhibits (Dated January 29, 2018) 
Attachment 2 -  Approved Planned Development Ordinance O2006-61 (Dated August 15, 2006) 
Attachment 3 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 4 -  Aerial View of 830 N. Madison Street 
Attachment 5 -  Approved Ordinances O2015-10 (March 17, 2015) and O2016-07 (January 19, 2016) 
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Attachment 3: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment 4: Aerial View of 830 N. Madison St. (facing north) 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 11, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  339 W. 57th Street – T-Mobile Central, LLC – Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review 
 New Telecommunication Equipment on Village Owned Water Tank at Hinsdale Central 

High School - Case A-13-2018 – IB Institutional Buildings District 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance/Site Plan application from T-Mobile Central 
LLC, requesting approval to upgrade and replace (4) existing antennas and adding (4) new remote radio 
units (RRU). New associated ancillary equipment such as (4) pipe mounts and (8) radio frequency (RF) 
modules inside an existing cabinet is also proposed. The requested upgrade is to improve network 
coverage in the area.  
 
Request and Analysis 
 
Per the applicant, the new equipment will match the existing hardware on the water tower. There is a 
side-by-side comparison of the existing and proposed equipment on Sheet A-2, and before/after 
proposed elevation photos, both, in Attachment 1. Please note, on Sheet A-2, the (4) existing equipment 
labeled “TMA” (in red), and proposed (4) equipment labeled “FHFB” and “FRBG” (in blue) function as 
RRU. 
 
The existing (4) antennas on Sheet A-2 (in red) are mounted together, in front of the aforementioned (4) 
TMA units. The new antenna plan proposes to replace the (4) existing antennas with (4) new standalone 
antennas, labeled as: “A-2”, “B-2”, “C-2”, and “D-2”. To that end, the request will have a net increase of 
(4) new RRU units. There are no changes to the subject property elevation and the request will not 
affect the minimum code requirements as shown in the applicant’s table of compliance.  
 
The subject property is in the IB Institutional Building District at 339 W. 57th Street. The public meeting 
notice requirements have been followed per section 11-604(E), since the nonresidential parcel is within 
250 feet from a single-family zoning district. It abuts the IB district to the north, R-3 to the south, IB to 
the east and R-6 districts to the west. 
 
Process 
 
Pursuant to Section 11-606, the Chairman of the Plan Commission shall at the public meeting on the 
application for exterior appearance review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, 
material and nonrepetitive comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the 
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public meeting, the Plan Commission shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the 
form specified in subsection 11-103(H) of this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of 
the exterior appearance and site plan based on the standards set forth in subsection F1 of this Section 
11-604 and 11-606. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 – Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Application and Exhibits 
Attachment 2 -  Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and application location 
Attachment 3 -  Birds Eye View of the Project Location 
Attachment 4 – Birds Eye View of Project Location and surrounding area 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   April 11, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  4 N. Washington Street – Chase Bank – Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review 
 Relocation of New Air Handling Unit Condensers to the Rear of the Building, adjacent to 

the R-5 Multiple Family Residential District (Eve Assisted Living) 
Case A-15-2018 – B-1 Community Business District 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance/Site Plan application from The Architects 
Partnership, on behalf of Chase Bank, requesting approval to relocate the existing location for air 
handling unit condensers from the south parking lot area to the rear of the building at 4 N. Washington 
Street, in the B-1 Community Business District. The rear of the building, the north side of the subject 
property, is adjacent to the Eve Assisted Living building, in the R-5 Multiple Family Residential District. 
 
Request and Analysis 
 
The current condenser unit location for the former Northern Trust Bank is at the south west corner of 
the subject property, west of the Chicago Avenue parking lot entrance.  The proposed new condenser 
location is behind the building, on the north side of the subject property, and adjacent to the south 
property line of Eve Assisted Living.  The proposed new location is not visible from Chicago Avenue. 
 
There is an existing 6’ wood fence on the north property line, and the applicant is proposing to 
construct: a new 2’ retaining wall, a new 6’ wood fence (in addition to the existing 6’ wood fence), and 
install acoustical fabric blankets on the interior of the new 6’ wood fence.  Due to the grade difference 
between Chase Bank and Eve Assisted Living, the new 2’ retaining wall and new 6’ wood fence (8’ total) 
will not be taller than the existing 6’ wood fence. 
 
Per the Code, the south lot line (Chicago Ave.) is the corner side yard, and the east lot line (Washington 
St.) is the front yard. Thus, the proposed condenser location is considered the interior side yard.  The B-1 
District side yard setback is 10’, and the new units are proposed to be 10’-7” from the side yard lot line. 
A fence is permitted in the side yard setback per Section 6-111(H)(7)(j).  
 
Process 
 
Pursuant to Section 11-606, the Chairman of the Plan Commission shall at the public meeting on the 
application for exterior appearance review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, 
material and nonrepetitive comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the 
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public meeting, the Plan Commission shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the 
form specified in subsection 11-103(H) of this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of 
the exterior appearance and site plan based on the standards set forth in subsection F1 of this Section 
11-604 and 11-606. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 – Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Application and Exhibits 
Attachment 2 -  Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and application location 
Attachment 3 -  Street View of Project Location from Washington Street  
Attachment 4 -  Birds Eye View of 4 N. Washington Street and Project Location 
Attachment 5 -  Parcel Map of 4 N. Washington Street 
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2017 Version 

Page 6 of 8 
 

TABLE OF COMPLIANCE 
 
 

Address of subject property:    
 

The following table is based on the   Zoning District. 
 

You  may  write   “N/A”   if   the 
application does NOT affect the 
building/subject property. 

Minimum Code 
Requirements 

Existing 
Development 

Proposed 
Development 

    
Lot Area (SF)    
Lot Depth    
Lot Width    
Building Height    

Number of Stories    
Front Yard Setback    
Corner Side Yard Setback    
Interior Side Yard Setback    
Rear Yard Setback    
Maximum Floor Area Ratio 
(F.A.R.)* 

   

Maximum Total Building 
Coverage* 

   

Maximum Total Lot 
Coverage* 

   

Parking Requirements    

Parking front yard setback    
Parking corner side yard 
setback 

   

Parking interior side yard 
setback 

   

Parking rear yard setback    
Loading Requirements    
Accessory Structure 
Information 

   

* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage. 
 
 

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village’s authority, if any, to approve the 
application despite such lack of compliance:    

4 North Washington Street, HInsdale Illinois 60521

B-1

10'-0"

NEW LEASABLE AREA
3998 SQ.FT. / 250 = 16
SPACES REQ.
10 SPACES EXISTING

The building and site are existing. The original Building Permit application was for interior renovation and upgrade to
existing hvac systems. The exterior site work (the relocation of permitted condenser units) is the reason for this
application. There will be no other changes to the site except for the relocation of condenser units to the north facade.

N/A

N/A

N/A

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

N/A

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

13653.75 SQ. FT.

82.5 FT.

165.50 FT.

50 FT.

2

N/A

N/A

N/A

13'-0"

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

10 SPACES EXISTING

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

N/A

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

EXISTING/NO CHANGE

CU-3 (10'-7")

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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